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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043
Senato Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Q@ Conference Committee

Hearing Date January 12, 2001

Tapa Number Meter #
] 19.4 to End

1 X 0.0-11.1
l X 37.8-39.9

February 8, 2001 2 15.3-24,2

X
/\‘ /).
Committee Cletk Signature Q{MQ‘ @iﬂl

Minutes: Chairman Krebsbach opened ghe hearing on SB 2043 which relates to the powers,

duties, and responsibilities of the information technology committee and the information

technology department. Appearing before the committee to introduce the bill was Senator Larry
Robinson, representing District 24, He indicated that he was speaking in favor of SB 2043, He
indicated ﬁe has had the privilege for the past six years to serve as the chairperson of the interim
legislative technology committee. He indicated not only was he appearing to support the bill, but
he was ‘appearing to make some introductory remarks as well. Senator Robinson gave copies of
the information technology committees interim report to the members of the committee, He

indicated that this report contains a background, a summary report on the work of the

information technology committee over the last number of years. The work began a number of

years ago where we had an agriculture and information technology committee and some thought

that the combination was rather unusual. We then moved into 1034, he believed 4 years ago and
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loaring Date January 12, 2001

that was a rather dramatio departure ﬂ'om the role of technology and the working of the
technology department here in the capital and throughout state government. Last session we
really rolled up our sleeves and were very very wrapped up in discussions primarily in SB 2043
and SB 2044 from the 1999 legislative session. SB 2043 is before you today as a result of our
experiences over the last 24 months. The intent of this bill is to improve a document that has
been working, The changes we feel will make the situation much better. This concluded Senator
Robinson’s testimony, No questions were offered by the committee members. John Bjornson,
representing the Legislative Council appeared before the committee to explain the technical
aspects of the bill, Mr. Bjornson explained the bill by sections, The change in section one is on
page 2 of the bill. This dealing with the duties of the inforration technology Jepartment. The
department is supposed to review the cost benefit analysis of major information projects. Those
are projects with a cost of $250,000 or more in a biennium, or $500,000 total. There was
discussion regarding projects of the state board of higher education or institutions under the state
board of higher education. Section 2 of the bill relates to the powers of the information
technology department. This section would allow the department to finance the purchase of
equipment, software, any type of equipment the department may need. Section 3 relates to the
business plan of the information technology department. The department is required to
formulate a business plan and that has been done, The plan is sort of a living document that the
department will continue to update. Section 4 on page 4 deals with the statewide network
advisory committee. This advisory committee is probably no longer necessary and the functions
it was set up for are probably not needed at this time. There was a discussion that there is a need

for an advisory committee with respect to basic information technology planning including

7. providing electronic government services for citizens and businesses, developing technology
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infrastructure to support economio development and work force training, and developing other
state Mde information initiative and policy, This section changes the makeup of the committee
and makes it more of a planning committee. Section 5 deals with IT plans. The committce
received information that the planning process worked well but the January 15th deadline of cach
even numbered ysar was somewhat of a problem for them. They felt that moving it back to
March 15th would make it a little easier in the planning process in that it would coincide better
with their budgeting process as well, Section 6 relates to confidentiality of information received
by the information technology department. This concluded Mr, Bjornson's presentation, No

questions were offered by the committee at this time, Curt Wolfe, Chief information officer for

the state of ND indicated that he was appearing in support of SB 2043, A copy of his written
testimony is attached. Sepator T, Mathnn inquired about the first change regarding higher

education. He indicated that he wondered why only one entity was chosen for this focus rather

than all entities. Mr, Wolfe indicated in his response that oversight should be a part of this

however, oversight of higher education projects of a research nature should not be part of this

process. Senator’s T. Mathern and C. Nelson went on to ask further questions. Mr, Wolfe

responded (Tape 1, Side A Meter #'s 47.9 to 52.8). There were no further questions. Laura Glait
Vicc-chancellor for administrative affairs for the North Dakota University System. She indicated

she was appearing in support SB 2043, particularly sections 1 and 4. Section 1 dealing with

exemption on the large project recording for academic and research projects and in section 4

which would include the commissioner of higher Ed on the advisory council that Mr. Wolfe

spoke of. Chairnman Krebsbach, it would life easier for you folks with this bill, is that it? Ms,
 Glatt indicated that it would and essentially what it does is it puts into statute what has been the

current operating practice between ITD and higher ed. We do have a very close working
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relationship. Senator C, Nel.son inquired about the confldentiality of the administrative records
of the university system. Ms, Glatt indicated that Senator Nelson is correct in that the University
of North Dakota serves as the administrative computing sight for all 11 campuses in the
university system, They all share one system and UND manages that on behalf of the system,
The student records certainly are confidential as they relate to FERPA, federal standards on
confidentlality, The student records are. The remainder of the records, the payroll records or the
accounting records are not confidential, They are subject 10 the open records law. Senator C.
Nelson continued to make inquires of Ms, Glatt ( Tape 1, side A 57.1 to End and side B 0.0 to
2.2). There was nothing further at this time, Roger Bailey representing the North Dakota
Newspaper Association indicated that his organization had concerns about the original bill. With
the addition of the proposed amendment his organization supports the bi}l, Chairman Krebsbach
indicated that this amendment has not been formally proposed at this time, She inquired of Mr.
Wolfe if he was planning to take care of that? Mr, Wolfe indicated he would, There were no
questions for Mr. Bailey from the committce. Further testimony was offered by Max Laird,
President of the North Dakota Education Association. He indiceted that today's testimony is
being offered as a private individual. He indicated that he would like to spzak to some extent in
support of the proposed legislation and express his sincere support and cooperation with Curt,
Nancy, and the staff of the ITD. He thinks they have done a lot for those in public schools and
phblic education in terms of moving this broad band network. He identified one small concern
that he is yet to see addressed in this bill. Page 4 line 10 and 11 and lines 14 and 15 includes the

removal of two members representing clementery and secondary education, In the amendments

| to this legislation they have been struck and it has been brought to his attention that the addition

of the chairman of the educational telecommunications council or designee is in fact a
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representative of public schools and would in fact be a representative on this council. He

indicated that he has no concerns about that but with the fact that there is additional legislation
moving the educational telecommunications council from the Dept. of Public Instruction to the
ITD division, he sees this as the possibility of a field representative from public schools or
someone from the DPI actually not being represented on this council, He just wanted to express
his concerns to the committee. Curt Wolfe made a few more brief comments to the committee at
this time, There was nothing further from the committee. Chairman Krebsbach closed the
hearing on SB 2043 at this time,

Tape 1, Side B, January 12, 2001--Committee Discussion. A bief discussion was held about the
proposed amendments that are to he brought in as suggested by Curt Wolfe. John Bjornson from
the Legislative Council singgested that this could be done. The intern was asked to contact Mr.
Wolfe to see if he had a draft of what he is proposing. Senator C. Nelson requested of the
chairman that a copy be made available to the committee members of what Max Laird had talked
to the commiittee abéut the redefining of the technology committee. It was decided to hold any
action on this bill until next Thursday. There was nothing further at this time. On February 8,
v2001 the committee discussed SB 2043. Chairman Krebsbach indicated that she believed there
were no amendments offered. It was suggested by Mr. Bailey that he was concerned about the

language on the open records portion. In visiting with Mr, Wolf he had worked with Jack

* McDouald and Jack was comfortable with what they had put into the bill as far as changes were

concerned. ‘There was no further discussion. A motion for a Do Pass was made by Senator T.

Mathern seconded by Senator Wardner. Discussion continued. The question was catled. Roll

Call Vote indicated 6Yeas, 0 Nays, and 0 Absent or Not Voting. Senator Wardner will carry |

- thebill



FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legislative Counoll
04/25/2001

Bil'Resolution No.!

Amendment to: Engrossed
5B 2043

1A, State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations

compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. |
T099-2007 Blennium 2001-2003 Blennlum "2003-2008 Blennfum |

snersl Fund| Other Funds [General Fund[ Other Funds [General Fund| Other Funds

[Revenues

[Expenditures
Appropriations

18. County, city, and achool district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the sppropriate political

subdivision,

[ 19985-2007 Blennium 2001-2003 Blennlum 2003-2008 Biennium
"School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Counties ‘Cities Distriocts | Counties Cities Districts

]

2. Narrative: /dentify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal Impact and include any comments
relevant to your anelysis.

There will not be any fiscal impact with the conference committee amendments.

3. State fiscal offect detallt For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenuss: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each revenue type
and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each
agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropristions: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when arpropriste, of the effect
on the biennisl appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the
executive budget. ...dicate the relstionship between the amounts shown for expenditures and

appropriations.
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FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
04/09/2001

BilVResolution No.:

Amendment (o; Engrossed
8B 2043

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations
compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

999-2007 Blennlum 2001-2603 Blennlum 2003-20086 Blennium
General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund]| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds
Revenues $50,000 $25.009
Expenditures $50,000 $26,000
Appropriations $50,000 $25,0
18, County, oity, and school distriot fiscal effeot: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.
1998-2601 Blennlum 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2608 Biennium
School School Sohool

Counties Citles Districts { Coun('aa Citles Districts | Counties Cities Districts

2. Narative: [dent/fy the aspects of the measue which «ause fiscal impact and include any comments
relevant to your analysis.

Information Technology Department (ITD) will need to hire a consultant to assist in the development of
meaningful performance measures. Checked with the State Audlitor and they said they do not charge for

performance audits, so we did not add any dollars for this,
3. Stute fiscel effect detall: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each revenue type
and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

ITD will generate the revenue to cover this additional expense in the overhead rate we charge for our
services,

~ B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Frovide detall, when appropriate, for each
agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Expenses will be for consulting services in assisting ITD in establishing meaningful performance measures.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, of the effect
on the biennial appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the
executive budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and

appropriations,




ITD will need to be granted the special funded appropriation to accept the revenue and pay the expenses.

k::: —_Mke J. Ressler ~ Agenoyi 11D
Nomberi . "B-1001 _Paite Prepared: 04/10/2001
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fI5CAL NOTE
Boqqut/dd : _ e Council

Bi/Resolution No.:

Amendment to!

Engrossed
SB 2043

1A. State fisoal offect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations
compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

1999-2007 Blennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2006 Biennium
General Fund| Other Funds [General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds
Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations
1B. County, city, and school district fiscal etteot: /dentify the tiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.
-2007 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts | Countles Cities Districts | Counties Cities Districts

Engrossed SB 2043 with House amendments will not have any fiscal impact.

3. State fiscel offect detell: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

2. Norrative: /dentify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments
relevant to your anslysis.

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type

and fund affected and any amounts included In the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts,

agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropristion amounts.

Provide detall, when appropriate, for each

Provide detafl, when appropriate, of the effect

on the blennial sppropriation for each agency end fund affected and any amounts Included in the

executive budget, Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and

appropriations,

ﬁ: Mike J. Ressler genoy: D
» Number: 3281007 ate Prepared: 03/22/2007




FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

12/27/2000

REVISION

BilVResolution No.: SB 2043

Amendment to:

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared

to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current faw. ) _
1999-2001 Biennfum ~2001-2003 ennium 2003-2005 Blennium

General Fund| Other Funds [General Fund] Other Funds [General Fund| Other Funds
Revenues
[Expenditures
Appropriations
18. County, oity, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision.
1999-2001 Bilennium 2001-2003 Biennlum 2003-2005 Biennium

~ School School School
Countles Citles Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

Narrative: /dent/fy the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and /nnlude any comments relevant
your analysis.

The new composite of the Wide Area Network Advisory Committee will not change the costs
of operating the committee in comparison to the current biennium, These costs are paid for out
of the ITD special fund. All other requested changes in this bill will not have a fiscal effect.

. 3. State fiscal effect detall: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
' A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund afhected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

ITD will recover the revenue needed from the 4.9% overhead rate in existence today:.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts, Provide detall, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The expenses will not change from the current biennium for operating the new Wide Area
etwork committee. Expenses will include the $62.50 per day and the per diem for the
n-state employees who reside on the committee,




‘C. Appnpﬂmlom Expla/n the appropriation amounts. Provide detsil, when appropriate, of the effect on
" the blennis! sppropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive
budget. Indicste the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropristions.

ITD is seeking appropriation authority to receive the revenue and expend the funds to operate
the committee,

: Mike J. Ressler Agency: Information Technology Depariment
Number

701-328-1001 Date Prepared: 12/18/2000




FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

12/14/2000

Bill'Resolution No.: SB 2043
Amendment to:

1A, State fiscel effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared
to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. ‘

1999-2007 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium
General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds
Revenues $8,500 . $8,600 _ $8,500
[Expenditures $8,500 $8,500 $8,500
Appropriations $8,500 $8,50 $8,

1B. County, city, and school district fiscel effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision. ) ) L
15551 -2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium
School School School

Counties Citles Districts Counties Cities Distriots Counties Cities Districts

The new composite of the Wide Area Network Advisory Committee will not change the costs of operating the

committee in comparison to the current biennium. These costs are paid for out of the I'TD special fund. All
other requested changes in this bill will not have a fiscal effect.

Narrative: /dentify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any comments relevant
your anilysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
tund sffected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

ITD will recover the revenue needed from the 4,9% overhead rate in existence today.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts, Provide dstall, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected,

The expenses will not change from the current biennium for operating the new Wide Area Network
committee. Expenses will include the $62.50 per day and the per diem for the non-state employees who

reside on the committee,

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, of the effect on
. the biennial appropristion for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive




: budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations.

| ITD is seeking appropriation authority to receive the revenue and expend the funds to operate the committee.

701-328-1001 Date Prepared: 12/18/2000

: Mike J. Ressler Agency: Information Technology Depariment
e Number:




Senate GOVERNMENT AND VETERAN'S AFFAIRS

Date: 07/ ol
Roll Call Vote #:

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S8 2043

Committee

D Subcommittee on

or
E Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken D o) PGﬁS

Motion Made By Seconded

_SenT. Mathern By

Senato

Senators

Senator Karen Krebsbach, Chr. Senator Carolyn Nelson

Senator Dick Dever, Vice-Chr, Senator Tim Mathern

Senator Ralph Kilzer

Senator Rich Wardner

Total  (Yes) (Q No 0 |

Avsn 0

Floor Assignment Sevatar [AYard ner

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Modttle No: SR-23-2805
Carrier: Wardner

February 8, 2001 5:18 p.m.
- insert LC:. Title:.

8B 2043: Government and. Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Krebsbach, Chairman)
recommends DO PASS (8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2043

was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

3 . REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

(%) DEGK, (3) COMM




2001 HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR
SB 2043 |

: #




2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

. @ Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 13, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #

1 X 43.6

X -39.1

\
.Committee Clerk Signature rQAT/D‘JA}\QL/

TN
Minutes: Chairman R, Berg, Vicu-ChaM. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G.
Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. J. Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D. Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe,

Sen. Larty Robinson: 1 support this bill regarding the information techuology committee and

department,

Chairman Becg: Why add ‘finance the purchase’?

Sen. Robinson: It is a budgetary concern to aid major projects, It’ll be very similar to a bond

payment,

Rep. N, Johnson: (53.8) What information is intended to be confidential?

Sen. Robinson: That's something that needs to be added.




Page 2
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2043

Hearing Date March 13, 2001

John Bjomson: ITD Committee Provided a brief overview of the bill.

Curt Wolfe: ITD Committee We support this bill. ITD has always beei: a special fund area
working out monies on our own, The different agencies are financed by lines items and rate base.
We are a service provider and we bill like normal businesses but we do reduce rates rather than

create a profit.
Rep, Lemieux: Are there any limits on financing?

Wolfe: No, thete are no caps. We need the flexibility.

Chairman Berg: What do you do as far as leases?

Wolfe: Our standard agreement is 36 months.

Rep. Lemieux; What do you charge a court house?

m $900 per month pro-rated to each division by use. Forty-four percent of our income is
from state funds. The committee shall advise the department regarding statewide information
tec»hnology planning including providing electronics, government services for services and
business, developing technology infrastructures to support economic development and

work-force training, and developing other statewide information technology initiatives and

policy.

Yice-Chairman Keiser: Don’t you need to define confidential information?
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House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2043

Hearing Date March 13, 2001

Wolfe: We don’t want to get involved in that. We are subject to penalties for releasing

information.
Mike Ressler: (33.7) ITD Department Provided and explained amendments,

Laura Glatt: Higher Ed We support this bill from our perspective.

Chairman Berg: We'll close the hearing on SB 2043,

tl



2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043 (B)
House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Q  Conference Committee

Hearing Date March 19, 2001

Tape Number Meter #
33.5-55.2

Committee Clerk Signature

Minutes: Chairman R, Berg, Vice-Chair G. Keiser, Rep. M. Ekstrom, Rep. R. Froelich, Rep. G. -
Froseth, Rep. R. Jensen, Rep. N. Johnson, Rep. ] Kasper, Rep. M. Klein, Rep. Koppang,

Rep. D. Lemieux, Rep. B. Pietsch, Rep. D, Ruby, Rep. D. Severson, Rep. E. Thorpe.
Rep M. Klein: Provided and explained amendments,

Chairman Berg: We might want to put this in for mo more than 36 months,

Yice-Chairman Keiser; 1 move to add in 36 months to the amendment,

Rep M. Klein: I second.
Rep M. Kleint: I move amendments 10179.0502.

Rep Severson; I second.
Rep M. Klein: I move a do pass as amended.

Rep Koppang: 1 second.
| | 14 yea, 0 nay, and 1 absent Carrier Rep. M. Klein




10179.0502 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for

Title. Representative M. Klein
March 14, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

Page 4, lin?l 1, replace "Section” with "If Senate Bill No. 2251 does not become effective,
section”

Page 4, overstrike line 12

Page 4, line 13, overstrike "representing a", remove "workforce training advisory board”, and
overstrike the comma

Page 4, line 14, remove "one member", overstrike "representing"”, and remove "city or county"

Page 4, line 15, remove "government, one member representing the greater North Dakota
association” and overstrike ", one member”

Page 4, overstrike line 16

Page 4, line 17, overstrike "commission to operate in this state,”

Page 4, line 18, remove "one member representing”

Page 4, line 19, remove “Indlan ribes, and one member representing the hospital telemedicine
Industry” and overstrike the period

Page 5, after line 3, insert:

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. |f Senate Bill No, 2251 bacomes effactive,
section 54-59-07 of the 19899 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code Is
amended and reenacted as follows:

54-59-07. Biatewide-wide-area-network State Iinformation technology
advisory committee. The statewide-wide-area-netwerk state inform
advisoty committee consists of the chief information officer or the officer's designee,
who Is a nonvoting tnember; the state-ceurt-administrater director of the department of

nt and finance or the administrater's director's designeerwith-the

; the commissloner of higher education
or the commissioner's designee; the gnglrr;z&n ) ttr\t |
; e No

B

aucational 1e
ted by the gove

LI 1aRe

fial-. i
bers appoin

other appointees of the governor serve at the pleasure of the govemor. The governor
shall desighate the chairman of the committee. The department shall provide staff
services to the committes. Except for the commissioner of higher education and the
represeniatives of state agencies who recelve compensation for thelr duties as state
ofticers or employees, members of the committes are entitled to be compensated for
time spent In atendance at meetings of the committee and for other travel as approved

Page No. 1 10179.0502




by the chakmm of tho oommmeo at the rate of sixty-two dollars and mty cents per day
 and are entitied to reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in
the sarne manner as other state officials. The compensation and expenses are to be

pak; from appropriations for the department The committee shall advise the

LIV HY AR OV WY ©IC. VSO SQTVILOS
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Date: S /‘P 9 /
Roll Call Vote #: (

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SR, 2043

House Industry, Business and Labor Committee

Legislative Councll Amendment Number

Acton Tben O Y a0 Lnwded
Motion Made By ‘ ! l. t&[gd / Seconded By /04 .

Representatives Yes £ No Representatives
Chairman- Rick Berg v, Rep. Jim Kasper
Vice-Chairman_George Keiser V / Rep. Matthew M. Klein
Rep. Mary Ekstorm Rep. Myron Koppang
Rep. Rod Froelich - /| Rep. Doug Lemieux

Rep. Glen Froseth Rep. Bill Pietsch

. Roxanne J Rep. Dan Ruby

N Johnson Rep. Dale C. Severson
Rep. Elwood Thorpe

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: HR-49-6201

mm 2001 8:18 a.m. Carrier: M, Klein
insert LC: 10170.0503 Title: .0800

REPORT OF STANDING COMMNTEE
85 2043, as engrossed: industry, Business and Labor Commitiee (Rep. Berg,
| Chalrman) recommends A INDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (14 YEAB, O0NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed 8B 2043 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 2, line 17, after "purchage" insert “for a period not to exceed thirty-six months”

Page 4, lln“e 1, replace "Section” with "if Senate Bill No, 2251 does not become effective,
sectlon”

Page 4, overstrike line 12
Page 4, line 13, overstrike “representing a", remove "workforce tralning advisory board”, and

overstrlke the comma
Page 4, line 14, remove "one member", overstrike "representing”, and remove "gity or county”

Page 4, line 15, remove government: one
" and overstrike ", one mamber

Page 4, overstrike line 16
Page 4, line 17, oversirike "commisslon io operate in this state,”

Page 4, line 18, remove "one member representing”

Page 4, line 19, remove "|ndian iribeg. and one member representing the hospital telemedicine
industry” and overstrike the period

Page 5, after line 3, Invert:

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT, If Senate Bill No. 2251 becomes effective,
section 54-59-07 of the 1899 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

slate information technology
w commitiee consists of the chief Information officer or the officer's designee,
is & nonvoting member; the siaie-seurt-adminieiraier

or theadminisratere diractor's designee—wilh-the

; the commissioner of highe

oducaﬂonorﬂnoomnﬂu&onar’s dulgm. chairman of the information technolog
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time apent in attendance at meetings of the commitiee and for other travel as approved
by the chalrman of the committee at the rate of sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day
and are entitied lo reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in
the same manner as other slate officials, The compensation and expenses are (o be
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2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043
House Appropriations Committee | .

3 Conference Committee

Hearing Date April 2, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
04-02-01 _tape #1 0 - 3954
7 7
Committee Clerk Signature A/ﬂ% ’ M
Minutes:

The commi‘ttee was called to order, and opened the hearing on SB 2043,
Senator Larry Robinson: Senate Bill 2043 is a product of the interim information
technology committee, 1t has come through the Senate and has been heard and adopted by the
House IBL committee. There are amendments dated March 19, 2001, SB 2043 would require
the IT committee to review the cost/benefit analysis of any major project of the state board of
higher education or any institution under the control of the board, if the project significantly
impacts the statewide area network, impacts the state library system, or is an administrative
project. The bill authorizes the IT department to purchase equipment and software through
financing arrangements, specifies additional requirements that must included in the department’s
business plan, replaces the statewide area network advisory committee with a state information
technology advisory committee, changes the deadlines for agencies submitting IT plans from
1/15 to 3/15 of each even numbered year, and clarifies that information collected from agencies
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House Appropriations Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2043
Hearing Date April 2, 2001

regarding information technology standards, compliance reviews and plans is exempt from open
record requitements, Does not plan on going through the bill in great depth, and does know the
issue of financing equipment and software is a contentious issue, Only wants to say that the
interim committee reviewed this very carefully. It was the thought of the committee after careful
consideration that we have a couple choices to make. Because of the scope of technology in state
government, because of much of the technology, we could elect to build technology into the
budget upfront and pay for it in full at the time of the purchase. In consideration of a tight
budget, the thought was that the technology departme.nt was already positioned to lease
equipment that should we bite the bullet and pay for it up front, or should we consider the option
of spreading the costs by a financing arrangement over a period of years. He notes that the
House IBL committee restricted the finance option to 36 months. The bill comes to us to refine

and clarify some issues that we put in place in the 1999 session. The financing option, the issue

of the March 15th deadline. There is also a number of changes recommended to the information

technology committee. They are listed on the bill. The House IBL committee had a number of
questions regarding the composition of that commiftee. It wa. ..¢ feeling of the interim
committee at least, that we were fairly well represented. The biggest question here he believes is
the financing option. The ITD department needs this bill, John Bjornson from LC is here to
explain the bill, and Mike Ressler from ITD is here also to explain.

Chairman Timm: The amendments you refer to are they in the first engrossed bill?

John Biormnson: The amendments are in the unofficial version in the bill books.

Rep. Delzer: How do you view the financing? Do view that as bonding? Should it not
be part of our bonding limitation, and should it not be limited?
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Senator Robinson: Those are excellent questions and we struggled with this during the
interim. We thought this might be the only options with the restrictions of a very tight budget,
Would it be bonding, 1 would say yes. The House amendments restrict it to three years, WE
simply thought that with the scope of these projects and you use something over the course of 4
numbet of years, we didn’t feel we would be financially able to pay for this up front, Keep in
mind the department has been exercising a lease option, where you make lease payments toward
the cquipment. Much of this equipment is dated. You buy it and over the course of months it
bccomes obsolete. Leasing makes sense in a number of situations, In other situations the option
to finance over time spreads those payments out over the time it is going to be used. It is less of
an impact on the budget, you do have some interests.

Rep. Delzer: A lease is something you can drop out of if you financially need to. But if
you finance anything is there anything in the contracts that you know of where if the money is
not available we can just drop out of them?

Senator Robinson: All contracts are not created equal, He is not an expert, and maybe
Mr. Ressler can speak to that, You are right that in a lease you can drop out with a penalty, Sces
it as six of one, half a dozen of another, You have to look at each situation on an individual
basis. There might be some merits in some situations to lease. SB 2043 would allow the option
if it makes financial sense to finance.

Rep. Koppelman: Mentioned something about an exemption regarding the open records
law, and I notice a conflidentiality provision at the end of the bill. Can you ckplaln?

Senator Robinson: It clarifies that information collected by ITD agencies regarding
information technology standards, compliance reviews, and plans is exempt from open records

requirements. Mike Ressler will speak to this. There is a real sensitivity to the process of
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complling all this information in one agency. And then who should have access to that
information, Should it be available to all other agencies, should it be wide open to the public.
Keep in mind this is a statewide ITD plan. Afier extensive discussions over the interim we
recommended this provision in the bill that it be for the good of the order to have that
information remain confidential,

Rep, Delzer: Are you aware of anywhere else where the legislature has given away its
duty to appropriate money with no upper limit? I read this that they can finance for any amount
that they want, its limited to pay back in 36 months, but no other restrictions.

Senator Robinson: Doesn’t suggest that we are giving this responsibility up in any way.
The fact is the information committee is statutory, and the ITD director is a member of that
committee. This committee has actively been involved and at the table every step of the way in
that process. He has not made one decision without full support from that committee. WE have
come away from the process with consensus. Cannot think of any similar situation, but we have
a unique situation here in terms of the stricture of the committee and the reporting requirements,

Rep. Delzer: Is there anything in the bill that says that committee or the budget section
has to sign off before the financing arrangements can be entered into.

Senator Robinson: Doesn’t think so. One of the issues is that we don’t meet on an
annual basis, and technology changes quickly. The reasons for some of the things we do in the
legislature and the way it is structured are exactly because we have a session every two years.
We have to build in some trust into the equation. Can there be mistakes, yes. We certainly have
checks and balances, and we have the budget section. The budget section could call the ITD
CEO at anytime they want, He doesn’t see any possible problems.

‘ . Rep, Wald: Page 2, section 2, have you made any purchases for the coming biennium?
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Senator Robinson: He personally hasn’t. Mike Ressler can speak to that, There is a host
of activity going on in ITD as we speak. To roll out this wide area network there is activity
going on at this minute. Yes there have been efforts in this area to connect the universities and
libraries, and we hope to have 194 schools connected.

Rep. Wald: s that spending authority in current budgets, or in the 2001 budget?

Senator Robinson: That would have been in the previous allocation from the 1999
budget.

Rep, Huether: With the contracts we have in place now, would that prevent any other
entity from joining in? Thinking of hospitals in the state.

Senator Robinson: Those discussions are under way, and it is not exclusive. He has had
conversations and they see this as an exciting new opportunity. We need SB 2043,

Rep. Skarphol: In this current biennium the IT department chose to lease nearly $4
million of equipment. Some of us believe they had rather ambiguous authority to do that,
Would think that the language in this bill gives them pretty broad reach and submits their
contracts are going to be questionable at best since its in the law that contracts are subject to
continuing appropriations. This is deficit spending and how can you view it a2ty other way.

Senator Robinson: Some things never change. SB 2043 is before us for these very
reasons. We found that there were commitments stretching out for years in all the other
agencies, and that’s why we have set up an ITD department and have a C1O. This committee
will have to decide if it needs differcnt structure. This is not the first time we’ve had

commitments down the road, but it is the first time we have been aware of those commitments.

Rep, Skarphol: Thinks they have the ability to do this with the emergency commission, maybe a
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little less convenient, but it gives us a lot more trust in what they ere doing that just authorizing

; them to lease equipment at will without limits,

Senator Robinson: Whether you elect the emergency commission or a statutory
‘ Jegislative committee that meets with this group on an ongoing basis that is as close to
technology as you ca. get, that's the choice this committce needs to make,

John Biornson, Legislative Council Staff: Explained the amendment 10179.0503 made

by the House 1BL committee.

Rep. Byerly: In the original bil, the way it came out of the interim committee, was it at
the request of the court system that be removed from the advisory council.

mmgmm: The original committec was named differently, put into place for the
planning of the statewide network. That’s been accomplished now, but the interim committee

. and CIO felt it would still be helpful to have a technology advisory committee. It was felt at this

point there was a need to have the court system involved. More geared now to economic
development,

Rep. Byerly: Is this committee designed to assist state government or a committee to
promote the statewide use of IT?

John Bjornson: It should accomplish both. If you look at the end of the section to see the
purpose of the committee is to advise ITD regarding statewide information technology planning
including providing e-government services to help technology infrastructure, to support

economic development, and workforce training, and other policy, Its a general advisory

committee,

” Rep. Byerly: Thought we still had three branches of government. Part of the effort is

that we should support all three branches of government. If you pull a co-equal branch out of
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there, and is assuming our representation is from the interim IT committee, that there becomes a
problem. The judicial branch will have a system in every courthouse in tho state of ND, and
touch as many lives as any other state agency, he believes they should at feast be at the table with
some input.

Rep. Koppelman: Go to the financing issue, Any financing that an agency does of
equipment must contain a special clause that allows that to be contingent upon continuing
appropriation, Is that the way it is across the board with agencies that financo?

John Biornson: Not sure exactly how cach agencies contract reads, De2s believe that is
something the attorney general’s office desires. Ask Mike Ressler if their contract so reads.

Rep, Delzer: That is the gist of this whole bill, We need to get that answered. The way
he reads this, they are giving them the right to finance any amount they want and we are
responsible for that as a state,

John Bjotnson: You are giving them the right to finance. It certainly is implied and
could be more specifically stated, any agreement is subject to legislative approptriation.

Rep. Wald: In section 5, page 5, you used the statement of commissioner of education, |
should it not be chancellor,

John Biomson: That is the correct, official name in law.

Mike Ressler. Director of Operations, ITD: He first ar:swers many of the questions
previously asked, On the confidentially issue, the way the law read prior to this biennium, if
anyone came to ITD and asked for information, if it was public, ITD had to disclose it. We felt
many times that we didn’t know if the information was confidential or not. So we asked the

legislature to say ITD is just the keepers of the data. They do not have to hand out public data,

“and would refer the request for information back to the agency who owns the data. We then were
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sending requests about the statewide plan back to the various agencies, and were told by the

attorney gencral that the law should rcad that the ITD has the ability to provide information

about legislative IT plans to the requesters, We always let the department know what we have
given out, Has been with ITD for 16 years, and has done 44 lcases, and there were many done
before he came, In all cases we had the non-appropriation funding clause in the lcase. At ITD
we never sign a lease beyond the current biennium without such a clause.

There was a question on purchases made for the next biennium. We have, for the wide
area network, and for Job Service’s one-stop function. We stepped in and bought Oracle licenses
and a large system, so we can share those licenses with other state agencies. This has saved costs
for Job Service and other state agencies to benefit, Gave some history on the financing and
leasing issue, They were directed by the Attorney General to add the financing language to the
bill. We look for the best finance rates, and they are not always best from the Bank of North
Dakota. We are not allowed to build up a cash surplus, to save up for a big purchase, as the
federal government comes in and audits special fund agencies.

Chairman Timm: Are you saying the federal government is making you spend every
dime you have?

Mike Ressler: Close. They do allow us to build a small surplus but we cannot save up to
buy a big purchase.

Rep. Koppelman: In regard to the leases, does your agency communicate with the
legislature with your plans for the coming biennium for entering into new leases, or is this just a
whole package of what it costs over time, or is this just a surprise for us?

Mike Ressler: He reads this as their authority being limited to the appropriation per

biennium, We put this in our budget, and gave an example. The Job Service application was not
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budgeted for, and was a surprise to them, but they had the appropriation to do so and therefor

citered into it,

Rep. Skarphol: How did you have the appropriation to do so? If we give you a limit this

year, are you going to have the feeling you have the ability to exceed that as well?

Mike Ressler: In that case wo went to the emergency commission to got the authority to
do that. We would not exceed the budget if it got really close, and had to go to the emergency
commission,

Rep. Skarphol: What you anticipate that you will expend $3 million in equipment and
have an additional $900,000 worth of authority to lease or borrow. Could we just give you that
amount and say that’s it. If you lease, you go to the emergency section or budget section?

Mike Ressler: When you day give us that amount, are you meaning the authority or the
actual dollars?

Rep, Skarphol: The dollars in your budget for the equipment purchases.

Mike Ressler: Doesn’t want the dollars in a sense, because that would be all general
fund, and billing out their service would be billed to the agencies who use the service, and
loosing federal dollars.

Rep, Skarphol: But some agencies give you general fund dollars, If we limited your
leasing authority to special funds, would that be okay.

Mike Ressier: That would be acceptable.
Rep. Delzer: Looking at the fiscal note that says it has rio fiscal impact. How can you

say that for the next biennium? You are planning to do this, or you wouldn't ask for the

legisiation. How can you say there is no fiscal impact?
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Mike Ressler: The way he interprets the fiscal note is that if there is any Increased cost

2ue 1o the changes in the legislative code. If for some reason we couldn’t borrow money, we
have always had the ability to lease. Therefore, there would be no additional cost to borrow
versus lease, If that portion had been rejected by the legislature, and you wouldn't have changed
what was in current law, which is leasing, there would be no fiscal impact,

The chairman closed the hearing on this bill.
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Minutes:

The committee was called to order, and opened committee work on SB 2043,

Chairman Titmm: There are some amendments from Rep. Skarphol and another from
Rep. Delzer,

Rep. Skarphol: Explains the amendment 10179.0506. They are not as comprehensive as
they look. They really addressed the engrossed senate bill, and include the House IBL
amendment, The change he proposes is on page 2, section 8, 9 and 10. The real change is in
gsection 8, It tries to put in place some performance measures or benchmarks for the ITD to
develop and bring back to the legislature to get us to become more comfortable with what they
are doing and where they are going. If you read through the amendment you will see that |
worked in collaboration with OMB and the Auditor’s office and their IT people to come up with

this. Washington state has done some of this, and I hope that we can adopt these. They should

| gb a long way in making us more comfortable with the reports we get from 1TD.
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Rep. Skarphol: Moves to adopt the amendment. Seconded by Rep. Kempenich.
Rep. Wald: In regard to section 10, the performance audit, 1 thought we had heard from
the auditor’s office that they can only do 2 or 3 performance audits per year. Does this fall

within their capacity to do this?

Rep. Skarphol: I have discussed this with them. The amendment says to do the audit in

the 2003-3005 biennium, after the benchmatks have been in place a while. The timing is not
required, and says they may perform the audit, not shall perform it.

(Short discussion on looking at the amendment with the engrossed bill, not the bill
already with the House amendments in it. Roxanne, LC explains what the engrossed bill with
house amendments (in the bill books) says).

Voice vote adopts the amendment.

Rep. Delzer: Explains the amendment 10179.0505. It bothers him that this appears to be
a wide open finance. We will allow ITD to do whatevet they want, This amendment would
mean that the budget section or the legislature would have to approve during the interim any
finance agrcements. Moves to adopt the amendment. Seconded by Rep. Svedjan.

He appreciates the three years that the House 1BL committee put in, but feels this is also
necessary. We need some controls, doesn’t say they would go out and finance too much, but
they could.

Rep. Glassheim: Does see this amendment as too much management. They are limited
already by how much is in their budget. Then they are also limited in their contracts, 1t is also

limited to what has just been adopted. Now you want to go over every purchase agreement you

have authorized them to purchase.
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Rep. Byerly: First of all, Rep. Delzer’'s amendment only deals with purchases they want
to finance. If they have the cash, they can spend as much as they want. It is only those things
that they intend to finance, like the statewide network. All this is asking for is on things like that,
that they go to the budget section, so we know when we come back we are already way in the
whole in the budget.

Voice Vote adopts the amendment.

Rep. Byerly: Has a verbal amendment. On page 2 of the bill, line 17, where the House
amended it to say finance the purchase, he would like it to be restricted to *“‘up to the amount
included in the equipment line item of the budget”. Moves to adopt the amendment. Seconded
by Rep. Delzer,

Right now their equipment line item is $5 million. This will cap the amount of money
that they can finance to be equivalent to the line item. It will put a constraint on them. In section
2 of the budget bill, they have the ability to transfer in line items, 1TD could go out and finance
$71 mitlion of stuff without our knowing that is occurring. They could use the HIPAA money, if
not used ori HIPAA, to finance other things.

Rep. Aarsvold: Would that be the unencumbered balance of the equipment line item?

Rep. Byerly: Just the amount of money we appropriated. 1t would be the dollar amount
that shows up in the equipment line item of the budget, not the remaining money or balance not
used.

Voice Vote adopted the amendment.

Rep, Skarphol: Moves DO PASS AS AMENDED. Seconded by Rep, Wald,

Vote on Do Pass as Amended: 20 yes, 0 no, | absent and not voting,

Rep. Skarphol is assigned to carry this bill to the floor.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1028 and 1029 of the
House Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2043 is amended as follows

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 54-59 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the preparation of an information technology
department annual report; to”

Page 1, line 4, after “department” insert *; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to
provide for a performance audit of the information technology department”

Page 2, line 17, after "purchase"” insert “for a period not to exceed thirty-six months"

Page 4, Iin?i 1, replace "Section" with "If Senate Biil No. 2251 does not become effective,
section”

Page 4, overstrike line 12

Page 4, line 13, overstrike “representing a", remove "workforce training advisory board”, and
overstrike the comma

Page 4, line 14, remove "one member”, overstrike "representing”, and remove "¢ity or county"

Page 4, line 15, remove "government: one member representing the greater North Dakota
assoclation” and overctrike ", one membet"

Page 4, overstrike line 16
Page 4, ine 17, overstrike "commission to operate In this state,”

Page 4, line 18, remove "one member representing"”

Page 4, line 19, remove "Indlan tribes
industry” and overstrike the peri

Page 6, after line 3, insert:

“SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. If Senate Bill No. 2261 becomaes effective,
section 54-59-07 of the 1999 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

84-50-07. Statewide-wide-area-natwerk State information technology
sletewide-wide-area-netwerk

advisory committes. The nology
mq_qm commitiee consists of the chief information officer or the olficer's designee,

who I8 a nonvoting member; the slate-eeuri-adminiotrater director of the depariment of
: nd fing mthommmmm’ndesl?neerwim

ar; the commissioner of higher education

Page No. 1 10179.0508




or the commissione;‘sideslgnee;d? rman of the inf | of

North Dakota or a designee: the director of the Nc¢
council or a designee; the chairman of the education:
designee; and nire gight members appointed by the go

)

ether appointees of the governor serve at the pleasure of the governor. The governor
shall designate the chairman of the committee. The department shall provide staff
services 1o the committee. Except for the commissioner of higher education and the
representatives of state agencies who receive compensation for their duties as state
officers or employees, members of the committee are entitled to be compensated for
time spent in attendance at meetings of the committee and for other travel as approved
by the chairman of the committee at the rate of sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day
and are entitled to relmbursament for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in
the same manner as other state officials. The compensation and expenses are to be
paid from appropriations for the department. The committee shall advise the

department with-respaet-ia-ple g-and-implementation-ef-wide-ares 3
rdin ide information technology planning,
[ rovidin roni rnme rvices for citizen nesses,
developing te logy infrastructure to support economic development and workforce
training, and developing other statewlde information technology initiative licy."

Page 6. after line 15, insert:

*“SECTION 8. A new section to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century
Code Is created and enacted as follows

Information technology department annual report. The department shall
tepare an annual report to be presented to the information technology committee and
the legislative audit and fiscal review committee, The annual report must contain:

1. Alistof projects started, ongolng. and completed during the year including
ated budgeted and actu

d al costs and estimated implementation date for
each project,
Information regarding evaluations of cost-benefit analyses for completed
projects.

Page No. 2 10179.0506




SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PERFORMANCE MEASURES. ltis the
intent of the legislative assembly that the information technology department develop
performance measures to assist the legislative assembly in determining the
effectiveness and efficlency of the department's operations during the biennium
beginning July 1, 2001, and ending June 30, 2003, Each performance measure must
include a benchmark for targeted department performance based on national, other
states, or private sector performance. The department shall report to the information
technology committee and the legislative audit and fiscal review committee during the
2001-02 Interim on the performance measures developed.

SECTION 10. PERFORMANCE AUDIT, The state auditor's office shall
consider conducting a performance audit of the Information technology department
during the 2003-05 biennium. The review, if conducted, must include a review and
evaluation of the performance measures developed by the information technology
department during the 2001-03 biennium."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
Dept. 112 - Information Technology Department - House Action

This amendment makes the following changes:
+ Change the membership of the State information Technology Advisory Committee.

+ Requires the department to prepare an annual report and present it to the Legislative Council's
Information Technology Committee and the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee.

¢ Provides legislative Intent that the Information Technology Department develop perfermance
- measures,

+ Provides that the State Auditor's office consider conducting a performance audit of the Information
Tachnology Department during the 2003-05 blennium.

Page No. 3 10179.0506
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Floor Assignment
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Representative Delzer
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'PROPOSED WENQMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

- Page 2, line 19, after the period insert *
0 finance the purchase of software

SEUTION U D10 19LHSIHIVE

Renumber accordingly
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BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. <4 30 3

House _APPROPRIATIONS Committee
D Subcommittee on
or
] Conference Committee
Legislative Councll Amendment Number / 6/7 9. % 50 S
Action Taken /ﬁﬁ‘][) ol jé a d&ﬂ 7L AL 21 o/ww/mf
Motion Made By Seconded W
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Timm - Chairman
‘ Wald - Vice Chairman '
o Rep - Aarsvold . ) Rep - Koppelman

Rep - Boehm N Rep - Martinson

Rep - Byerly N A Rep - Monson

Rep - Carlisle AN\ AV Rep - Skarphol

- Delzer N Rep - Svedjan

Rep - Glassheim Rep - Thoreson

Rep - Gulleson Rep - Wamer

Rep - Huether Rep - Wentz

Rep - Kempenich .

- Kerzman

Totasl  (Yes) No | ,
Absent
Floor Assignment | §

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent;




Date: ‘/ 50 / f

Roll Call Vote #: S

2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. <2 50 (/3

House APPROPRIATIONS Committee

Subcommittee on
or
j Conference Committee

» Legislative Council Amendment Number

/’4074&14 h wldh  drae .

jph ame

g

pw y e

Action Taken ﬂ
Motion Made By Seconded
_&0, S é 0, Mg&’t)
‘ Representatives Yes | No Representatlvu Yes | No
| ‘Timm - Chairman
. Wald - Vice Chairman
Lo Rep - Aarsvold E M Rep - Koppelman
Rep - Boehm \ r& " Rep - Martinson
'Rep - Byerly WYY Ay Rep - Monson
Rep - Carlisle \3" \G Rep - Skarphol
- Delzer N Rep - Svedjan
Rep - Glassheim N Rep - Thoreson
Rep - Gulleson Rep - Warner
Rep - Huether Rep - Wentz
Rep - Kempenich
- Kerzman -
- Kliniske
Total (Yes) No
Absent <D g
Floor Assignment )‘ ‘3};;
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: r
P9 A /,LM (] a /uo?é/c 74m ;
] ;i




k1
3
iy
P
g
o
N
L[58
L.
i
.
o
<
[
4
i
|
n
8
v
i
I3
a0
"
[ .
i
et D
St
by
h
)"
"
iy
|
[
N
L
Hie
“*
M
n
)
o
i
j ;
W
Y,
‘:J .
5
iy
P
hiv
‘-‘n"'
R
)i
A
:
1
i

Rep - Gulleson

Date: ’/’5‘0/

Roll Call Vote #:

-2001 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIG . <
UTIGNNO. <2 94 (/3

House APPROPRIATIONS

D Subcommittee on

or
D Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number / é/ 79 0@? /

Action Taken @) 543‘ 747 léffmmaé

Motion Made By _é@ sk Seconded JQ,Q Mﬁ/

_Representatives No Representatives Yes

Timm - Chajrman

Wald - Vice Chairman

Rep - Aarsvold |

Rep - Boechm

Rep - Caslisle

- Delzer

- Glassheim

NSNS s:f’

¢ « Huether

- Kempenich

Total  (Yes) _ﬁ D No

Absent L /

Floor Assignment _. ,%O SI&JM

If the vote Is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent;




doRAsp Wweusedep ABOIOULOE! LOTRULOIUY 8U) JBR AQUISSSE BAqErSIBar Ay JO JuaIn
N B Y SIUNBYIN IONVYNHOIHTL - INTINI IALLYISIOTT -6 NOILOIS

SMOR0] ST PATTRUD PUE POTRALD §1 9p0D
lureued MOYRQ YWION SR 10 659G J9N0RD OF UOKOSS MPU Y ‘8 NOUD3S,

ety "G oum sele °g a0e 4

gggzﬁgg-li .(.

% PUR J0r SATEROe] 10 SRS ¥ SPAD) G %, LSy Jususmdep, s °y suy <) oiNg
- D 1 24

O J008s praRme Rewpmdep 3
ggiﬁgaﬂi.&giahwr
JUON 13 J0 65-9S JNORLD O LORIES MBUL B TRUS PUR SIBGIS, USRI Ol SIS *1 auy °5 oBag

RN AN

_ Syl “sEono 0T IR0 a. Egg. gagﬂggsggi! 1
Sgggglﬂ-!u&gﬂ%sg .
ilgaﬁggézigigﬁa!ggf gtgpgﬁoalgsgﬂgﬂabgi‘t‘l

G 08 078 BOSUNtxy pUR

“SUPUBKED SUE U0 JSPIO NS SE U0

09D R 10 VOIS0 MR OUM SUOUSOR TS 10 SOATER SO IR $ pocexd Sem S0 BS Peesoaliuz3 . (SNLLOA 1JON ONY INSSEY i "SAYN.0 ‘S¥3A o8]
.iatioﬁﬂ;gguo%% F31LIWICO DNIGNY1S 30 1HOEN

SEVd OG FUMIICOS) "PEPUSUR OF USYM DU Y Su %
;)] ool o w

SpA0X] FRUS WOURMCD SyI SEUIALCO Si IO LEUUMP S HEUBSIP FEus SPUSURNICOR) (DS ‘Temny “degl) SeANOD
0uaenoll ey
= R 01 poasle Sew o & PUE peased GOCT BS pessariny ey
Avaing - AVGm1 FSOOH FHL 30 TVNINOr ’ .




33003 fepA 2yosog pmin Sumeq Lezeg Henpg Symo uowms

BRNIUNYT) MM RIS DU 30Ny Sxermlen) S5 FOR SAQRI0TS ABOIOUGOS] DOPSERS
mgigsuigggigﬂgrlio




¥
U

PR S AR

2001 SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS
CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
SB 2043
g
.g\“‘{f b |




2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
‘_ Conference Committee

Hearing Date April 20, 2001

Tape Number Side A Side B Meter #
I X 0.0-52.5
LN
Q{ R e
Committee Clerk Signature M.}\)\ @(gu,

‘ \
Minutes: Chairman Krebsbach calleb\sLe conference committee to order on SB 2043 which

relates to powers, duties, and responsibilities of the information technology committee and the
information technology department. The clerk called the roll and all members of the committee
were present. At this time Chairman Krebsbach opened the discussion of the amendments
which had been placed on the bill by the House of Representatives. Representative Berg
indicated that Representative Skarphol could address the amendments which were added by the
House Appropriations Committee and he would address those which were added by the House
Industry, Business and Labor Committee. In the IB&L Committee, the amendments added really
did two things, first of all was the financing. On page 2 of the version 700, if you go to section
2, one of the key components of the bill is allowing them to finance through revenue that would
be coming in from the agencies. One of the things we did was we said you can go ahead and
finance it, but we don't want it not to exceed a three year amortization period. If they are going

to ﬁmneo it, it needs to be a short term issue. At this point Chairman Krebsbach indicated that
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from her understanding there are some issues from the information technology division relating
to the house amendments. At this time she presented written copies of this information to the
committee members. Representative Skarphol indicated that the House Appropriations

Committee felt it was appropriate to put a little more specific language as to the mechanism that

we wanted the department to utilize in doing financing because there was a potential for the

department to spend an awful lot of money and at this point in time the House just wasn't

* comfortable in allowing them that level of flexibility. We further amended starting on line 25.
The department shall submit proposed agreements to finance purchase of software equipment
under this subsection to the budget section of the legislative council before executing the
agreement. If the budget section does not spprove the execution of the agreement, the
department may not proceed with the proposed financing arrangement. He doesn’t really believe
that the intent was to be onerous with this. He believes the intent was to just have some
oversight. The department in the previous biennium answered only to the ITD Committee many
of whom had never served in budget section and have realizzed the full implications of something
like this. When you analyze the situation the department had the capability to borrow up to the
full extent of their budget which in essence was $90 to $100 million. We went on to further say
in here tl:at the department may only finance the purchase of software equipment only to the
extent the purchase does not exceed the amount appropriated to the department in their
equipment line item. In other words we limited them to 5.5 million or, it was just a real concern
that we could get involved ii spending an awful lot of money without any budget section
oversight. As he had indicated before, it wasn’t intended to be onerous and we didn’t want to do
that we just wanted to be made aware of it, create a comfort level between the department and the

legislature. That comfort level doesn’t exist on the House side to the degree that it does on the
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Senate side. If there is some language that we need to adjust here we could probably do that

within reason to make it more workable for everybody. It is just one of those issues that was an
issue with us, Representative Berg indicated that the objective was not to create a burden that
' slows the process down but to have some oversight at least on the major issues and again, not
that the budget section is going to reject them but at least there is an awareness to the budget
section as this kind of comes together. One option which the house talked about was briefly was
even if we put some kind of limit on there. You don’t have to wait until the eleventh hour to
come to the budget section, You can come to the budget section four months in advance and say
here's one of the things we are planning on doing, the budget section says yes, OK and then they
can go ahead and bids come in in that range, they can go ahead and execute the contracts.
Representative Skarphol indicated the other issue that you folks need to be aware of is that in
the ITD budget and it’s not settled yet, but the proposals are fairly close. There is language being

put in there that allows the department to transfer between line items within their budget up to

the level of the éovemor’s recommendation on January 7, 2001, So for example we took some
money out of CII, But, if the CIO decides he has some extra money somewhere else, he like to
put some money in CII, he can do it up to the level of the line item in the budget. So he does
have some flexibility there to work with as well. We have tried to give him as much as we can
but still have some oversight. Chairman Krebsbach inquired if there were any questions or
comments at this time. Senator Wardner indicated he was wondering if the house had any
‘problem with them reporting to the Emergency Commission. He indicated that some of the
members of the committee have served on the budget, he hasn’t and he is not on the emergency

commission so he is not certain how that all works, His understanding is that ITD doesn’t have a

| . | problem with reporting, it’s just that they would like to be able to move a little quicker. Going to
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the Emergency Commission would speed things up and they would still be held accountable.
Representative Berg indicated he thinks that the emergency commission meets at the same time
as the budget section so it’s once a quarter kind of ongoing, but they can be called together
quicker as well so again maybe he is looking at this a little different. He thinks the issue is on
expenditures that they desire to finance that are coming up that they need to make a decision on,
they'll want to make a decision on. If there are things that are out of the normal course of
business, he thinks that is what the budget section wants to be aware of. He doesn’t know if it
makes any difference if it is emergency or budget. He guesses the only difference is the
emergency commission can be called together to meet. He would think very few agency heads
would want to have an emergency meeting of the emergency commission. If you've got a little
financing thing because that becomes the focal point of a lot of press and a lot of debate, He
thinks what we are trying to do and he is assuming this came from IT. Chairman Krebsbach
indicated yes it did. Before we made a dicision to concur ot not concur we asked them to come
down and give some ideas as to how they felt about the amendments and that is where this
document came from. Representative Berg indicated he wasn’t sure how you wanted to do this,
Chairman Krebsbach indicated she wanted to know how many people serve on the
Information Technology Committee, There is some crossover between that committee and
budget right at this time and has been from her understanding. She thinks there is connection
and the budget committee does have information through this committee. Representative
Skarphol indicated that he has looked at the membership on that and he is not sure there is a lot
of crossover on that thing. There probably will be if the same members stay on because
Representative Thoreson for one is on there but he has never served on budget section prior to

this. Representative Lemieux indicated that the members that would have served would have
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been Robinson, Solberg that had access to the budget section. Other than that from the House it
was Eckstrom, Thoreson and himself. Representative Skarphol indicated that is probably the
reason for the level of discomfort in the house. We are not trying to be onerous. We are just
trying to be participatory in some of this at this point in time because we, in our discussion we
were less able to find successes than failures in IT programs as they developed. For that reason
we wanted to try to insure that we give as much input into this because we are the ones who will
ultimately be responsible if its a failure, | mean we are going to have to pick up the tab, the
department will take up some flack on it, but we are the ones who have made the decisions. We
want to come back next session, see a success, and say hey, let’s really go for this this time, We
want to start cautiously and then let it go when we see it is a success. Representative Lemieux
indicated that he has to agree with Representative Skarphol about having the oversight if we are
to enter into contracts it's not something that is just today, it’s something that well thought out,
it's plan’s that have been put together but ITD, having them come to repott to the ITD
Committee and the Budget Section he doesn’t think is over burdensome, These prujects that we
are talking about aren’t the daily we need a small program that’s going to cost us 3 to 4 thousand

dollars. What we are talking here is some major programs, projects. Chairman Krebsbach

inquired if there was a dollar amount that you are looking for to be requested from the budget

section. There isn't that she sees here. Representative Berg indicated that he has served in the
budget section and he thinks that it is a good process to have that go through. The budget section
would be extremely frustrated if we had financing proposals for two years at a hundred thousand
dollars or fifty thousand dollars. He thinks really what we are trying to do '3 be awars of the big
issues that are happening, What we are doing is we are saying that they have to have budget

seotion approval, if the budget section doesn’t approve they can’t move ahead. For lack of a
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better starting point he’d sure say if we were a million dollars or under, we don’t require them to
receive approval from the budget section. Maybe this information is just provided to the budget
section. Ifit’s projects over a million dollars that would be something that the budget section
should take a vote on. Senator Wardner noted on the top of page 2 and 10 it talks about cost
benefit analysis of any major informational technology project and it does have a dollar amount
there, The major project is a project with a cost of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars. He
doesn’t know how that fits in here, but there is a dollar amount and this his understanding is, has
to go, it's one of the powers and duties of the information technology committee, He doesn’t
know, he would think that that number would mean something, because so it would be even less
than what you are proposing Representative Berg, Representee Lemieux indicated that in
section 2 lines 22-31 it is predominantly if we are going to finance and otherwise everything
would have been budgeted previously through someone’s proposals previously and so this really
addresses if there is something that comes up in the interim, to enter into a new project or to
expand. It talks about entering into leases or purchases and things like that. These should go
through the legislative processes, as part of the budgeting processes. To answer those questions
he thinks is imperative. Senator C. Nelson indicated she had asked the chair if she might ask
Curt Wolf a question. If you are considering financing something other than outright purchase of
a lease which has been in the bill before. What dollar amount are you looking at? Are we
talking about something we don't need to talk about because it's never going to happen? Curt

V'olf indicated that they think it (s most appropriate that they report to the budget section and he

has no problem with that. They outrently have about 3.2 million dollars ov in loans. Of their

lust six [nans one was two million the rost were 1 million or unider, An example of what hagpens

here is Job Seryice came to us 6 months ago and saic they wanted to do work with ITD and bus
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services from ITD rather than build their own and expand their ows: computer center. They
needed ITD’s help to finance buying. We put that together, it was under a million dollars but we
financed it becauce we didn’t have that kind of cash and we billed it back to as part of the rate
base billing to Job Service for that and they are paying for their share of those licenses and we
were able to get a 50% discount from the vendor because we packaged those many licenses
togetirer. The discussion that you’ve had, we are not in disagreement with any of it other than
the timing issue of how quickly sometimes we have to be able to move, He thinks
Representative Berg's recommendation that some kind of money amount under that we can
move ahead and then report to the budget section what we are doing, Anything over that would
force us to get formal approval from the budget section. He thinks they would be very
comfortable that they could operate OK with that kind of a structure going forward.
Representative Skarphol indicated that in that situation the concern in the committee is the
financing thing, This is a new issue. We have never had to deal with this before. The lease
thing is subject to a continuing appropriation, Financing is worded the same way for the most
part contract. The dilemma is we can not deficit spend according to the constitution. We have to
be 1 ory careful how we proceed with this. Curt my question of you is would you have a problem
if we wanted to try to change something in here of having it be an accumulative amount beyond
which in other words you could finance 20 $150,000 projects none of waich would be over a
$250,000 limit, The accumulative total wouid be far beyond the $250,000 limit, We need to
find some middle ground here that we are going to be comfortable with here. Mr, Wolf

indicat 'd don't confuse section 10 the reference to the $250,000 and the $500,000, Those are
software development projects that wura r;iorted on just bec: use of their size. 'We were asked to

oversen those 10 make sure that they ars doi «, night. These loans are related to buying equipment
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or system software specifically. The 3 year limit is very reasonable. It is a different kind of

thing, To answer your question though you have limited us to an equipment line item that is

approximately 5 million dollars. Over the last twenty years there have been probably a few notes

that have been greater than any one note that has been 5 million when we bought major upgrades

to the mainframe computer which we don’t do much of anymore. We can usually plan those to

where we can give our budgeting process lets you know that we intend to do this. To answer

your question he indicated he would be happy with some kind of limit here that you are

comfortable with. We can do loans up to 5 million, Again we would continue to report what we

are doing to you. Holding a governor on us with the size of these loans cumulatively come to

and if that's the 5 million that’s in our equipment line, that would be fine. He indicated he was

open to whatever you all believe to be the best limits you want to put on this. Not to over limit

us to where we can not operate on it. If the budget section has just met and then a weck later

something comes up to where we can provide a real service to an agency and we need to borrow

some money he would not like to have to wait three months to bring it 1o the budget section. On

the other hand he can appreciate the budget sections interest in knowing what we are doing here,

Chairman Krebsbach indicated you feel Mr, Wolf that if you were to report to them exactly

what you had been financing on their or at their quarterly meetings, that would just be a report to

them on the status of this particular section, Mr. Wolf indicated that they think surely they b
should report regardless. The point that he thinks Representative Skarphol is getting to is you go
out and borrow a hundred million dollars and oh by the way next time we go to the budget
section we say we botrowed -« iindred million dollars, We certainly wouldn’t do that by the Yy

way. We report all of this to UMB and they know what we are doing and so [ don't think they

would let us go do something wrong. He doesn’t mind, a cap is just sort of protection of us
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doing something 1rresponsible. Yes, obviously he would just prefer reporting. Chairman
Krebsbach inquired what dollar amount Mr, Wolf would see as reasonable if the committee
were to put one in. Mr, Wolf indicated he thought of their last six notes only one exceeded a
million. So he thinks a million is a good number that was thrown out earlier. With some cap of
$5 million before, something like that, Representative Berg indicated that if he understood the
amendments there is a $5 million cap. Mr, Wolf indicated there is for the biennium,
Representative Berg indicated so the loans could not exceed $5 million in total. So if you had a
loan for $500,000 and that was paid off in 18 months, then you could finance more as long as the
aggregate total did not exceed $5 million. Is that how we understand it? Mr, Wolf indicated
that was a very good question. Right now they have about $3.2 million in outstanding loans
which are ones that have historically progressed. He doesn’t know even when they expire.
Hopefully we aren’t saying here that $3.2 counts toward the $5 million for the next biennium.,
Yes. To answer your qucstion that would be fine to say that cumulatively they can’t exceed $5
million, Rick Berg indicated the fundamental issue here is not your fault, But, many of us have
always been under the premise that we can not obligate another biennium. That is really what we
are doing here. Now, does it make sense to do it this way, probably, but we’ve always resisted
obligating another biennium, Obviously we do bonds and things like that but that is the
fundamental concern that he thinks people have. If we are making that change we want to make
sure that we do it appropriately, Quite frankly the other side of it is this is a practice you are
doing right now and maybe you shouldn't have been doing it. Mr. Wolf indicated that there is
legislative authority or there is statute authority to at least purchase this which is what we have

done historically for the last twenty years. These purchases as a specific loan was not. Rick

Berg indicated there was not any difference between a lease and a finance. Chalrman
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Xrebsbach indicated just for information that is basically why all this process was started,
because there was an alarm as to how much was being leased by all agencies. Just for
information Representative Berg we find the same thing in contracts for services, Those are
done on the same system and the same manner. Representative Lemieux indicated that Mr.
Wolf had alluded to the budget section has just met and a project comes in and it would be we
couid provide a service. Could you give us an approximation if that's something that has come
up so quick of those instances where you would need less than three months, to enter into a lease
and of what dollar value possibly? Mr, Wolf indicated that a lot of times it does move very
quickly because again when agencies went out and bought a package we need to run it, we need
to buy additional equipment to house it, and we charged it back to provius that support. That can
happen certainly in less than three months. The huge projects like ART in the Capitol, you are
right, three months wouldn’t be an issue, Representative Lemieux ac¥-.d it be would answer
the question as to the smaller projects and where you think a reasonable cap would be? He
doesn’t think a million dollars would be reasonable cap on a project that has to be done in less
than three months, Mr. Wolf indicated he was sure that the issue was here that they are buying
equipment and this equipment is expensive and even if it is a small application typically the
hardware expenditure could be substantial so it’s, and it could have a short life to it in terms of
reaching a conclusion. Working with the agenoy that would want to do something,
Representative Skarphol indicated he thinks that we can find some ground here that we can
work with but he wanted to go on to the rest of the bill so we can get through it and maybe
Monday we can sit down with some suggested language and work it out. The rest of what the

Appropriations Committee did was sections 8, 9, and 10 of the bill. Again he goes back to the

faot that they had a lot of difficulty on. Representative Berg, maybe befure we get there,
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section 4 of the bill again this isn't the controversial one, but what we did is in section four, the
language that is crossed out, this has all the members designated as to who the governor would
appoint, and we deleted that and said the governor can pick eight members. So it gives the
governor more flexibility to get the right people on the committee. Chairman Krebsbach
indicated she believed those amendments were agreeable with the information technology as
well, Senator Wardner indicated he thought that this was probably a good move. He
remembered at the end of the interim they were trying to recall if they left somebody out, or
should we get this person, it was, so he welcomes those amendments, Representative Skarphol
retutned to his discussion of section 8 of the bill. He indicated that again this was due to the
perception in the Appropriations Committee that we have had some really unfortunate incidents
in regard to technology in the state, The University System had somewhat of a fiasco, we’ve got
a fiasco over at the motor vehicle department, We just thought it was appropriate to try to put
something in here that again is not an attempt to be onerous for 1 I'D, but rather to create a
comfort level and facilitate communication so that when we come back in this next session we
have a document that we can work with and look at that anyone can read and become more
familiar with what is going on. He realizes they have their annual report and stuft, but these
suggested benchmatks or however you want to refer to them. They were put together by some
people that spent a great deal of time working on this and they went back to the state of
Washington and what Washington used and tried to compile something, He just thinks that we
need to have something in statute that does this and he thinks it would be appropriate in more
than just this agenoy and he would love to see it in commerce, We did direct the commerce

department to do this by the middle of this next biennium they have to have some of these in

place. He doesn't think they are onerous, he thinks they are probably somewhat repetitive to
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them but they should be able to take it from one document and transfer it to another and provide
it to the two committees suggested (the I'T committee and legislative audit and fiscal review).
Then after that it can go wherever. The performance measures issue in section 9 again it's intent
language that says the department will develop the performance measures. There are those
among us who don’t think that is probably entirely good, We thiink we shouid do it und whatever
but we wanted to give them the ability to help develop the list above. These are some of the
things that we would like to see. If you can do better for us, we will be tickled with it, is really
where we are at with this and establish some benchmarks so that when Mr, Wolf is gone and the
next person is there to take his place that we have some measurements that we can hold people
accountable to, to make sure things are working. That is all we are after. The performance audit
is a suggestion that in the next biennium the auditors office should look at it to see that we are
getting the results that we have been promised that’s all, It doesn’t require it, it says shall
consider and again it’s just intent language. He doesn’t view these as onerous in any way, shape
or form. He just thinks that as a committee and he say;s this very sincerely there wasn't a lot of
disagreement about this, these amendments were felt appropriate. Chairman Krebsbach
inquired if Representative Skarphol was acquainted with the document which IT currently puts
out as it's report. She indicated that this document is providing everything that you are asking
for in section 8, She feels they are already doing it. She sees no need to duplicate in our statute
things that are being done already. Representative Skarphol indicated he would disagree with
one of these in partioular and that is nuniber 8, Information regarding the departments project
management system including whether a project manager is assigned to each project. He would

think that across campus hete in the department of transp~riation, had there been a project

1nanager that particular project would not have been the flasco it has been, IHe guesses we could
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argue particular issues, Like he said this is to create a comfort level and awareness. The whole
idea is that these things are going to be brought periodically in front of these two committees,
these particular issues and drawn to their attention. We get numerous books of that size that |
would submit to you very few of us read all of thein. I’m serious about that. That doesn’t create
a comfort level if you get the book and never look at it. Making this agency talk to the members
of these committees, you have at least 15 people who are made aware of this. Chairman
Krebsbich inquired could not those 15 people be provided this? Representative Skarphol
indicated certainly they could, but if they go before the committee and they go through & list of
particular topics it’s going to happen. If they are required to it is going to happen. We are going
to sit there and we are going to listen and we are going to ask questions and we are going to
become more femiliar and more comfortable. If we read that at home, we don’t have the
opportunity to ask them questions. We don't have the opportunity to have the two way
communications that you have sitting in a comrﬁittee room. Representative Berg indicated
obviously a part of this process is you have to put an amendment on the table and so he thinks
the point that Representative Skarphol is bringing out is that there is a lack of understanding by
legislators, anc maybe it is our fault, maybe all t’ie information we are asking for is out there and
published, but we don’t know about it, and so again the positive side is there are two groups that
maybe, audit and fiscal review and the budget section if they are more aware of wiiat the state
wide technology plan is and some of these other things. He thinks that would benefit the whole
state as we move forward into technology. It may be part of what we need to do here is to say
what information is currently being provided. I don’t think we are looking at trying to create
another layer of work if it is already there, What we need is we want the information presented

to other groups of legislators in a way that we can easily grasp and understand, I think that is
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particularly what we are looking at here. Chalrman Krebsbach indicated that she s having

difficulty, when we always look for efficiency in government and then we are asking them to do

a report just to suit our needs for a particular time when it is reported, it is up to us sometimes to
seek out what we have and if we don’t have, go to the agency, find out what more information
we want. Senator C. Nelson indicated she tends to agree with Chairman Krebsbach, She
indicated if they want section 8 in there, end it after the first period and not delincate because this
’ book has more stuff in it than these twelve things, What she sees happening is that 1T is going to
write one with just these twelve things and say this is what you need to know. She would rather
give them the latitude. They got the message, these are the things you want to have, they can put
those there. They know they are supposed to have an annual report. Then you are talking sbout
flexibility for the governor, let’s talk about some fiexibility herc for IT. Senator Wardner
inquired if the budget committee could just let the department know that you want them to report

to the committee. Do they do that during the interim or what are the procedures?

Representative Berg indicated that obviously if the budget committee asks the agency to give
them a report, he assumes that the agency will give them that report. He thinks that
Representative Skarphol is hitting on something real key herc and he doesn't know if we are
going to solve this, If the question were asked to him as a legislator, what percent of the projects
have been completed on their estimated information date or what percent of projects have been
completed within budget. He doesn’t know if he can answer that. Can any of us answer that?
His point is not to put anyone on the spot here but, sometimes we don’t give an agency a clear
enough message as to what is the information you want from them so we end up getting reams

end reams of information that we can never get through when in fact they would be more than

happy to give us the specific information that we want, but we haven't told them what it is we
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really want, He thinks that's part of what the attempt to .o here is, This is what we feel is
important as legislators to make decisions on technology in the future. Again he thinks there is
4 rtunity here, but he agrees with Senator Krebsbach, we don’t want to create a lot more
work and something that is duplicative, maybe what we should do is throw this out in fact,
maybe [ shouldn’t throw this out, but there are 50 different annual reports that are required by
different agencies of state government to report. Now, if you asked him to name them he
couldn’t name them. He has a list upstairs showing them and he would doubt than any legislator,
but he would doubt less than 5% of legislators have gone through those reports and he is saying
that because he is as guilty as anyone else. His point was he was considering legislation that
would eliminate those reports but instead of those reports, having specific, clear measuzes that
we would want them to report on, which could be easily measured. At the end of cach month
and then at the end of the quater you could print them out, Kind of what we arc looking at here
is how can we tell Information Technology, here is the information that is really important to us
and if it’s reports that you are doing and no one is getting anything out of them maybe we
shouldn’t require you to do those reports. There is maybe a time savings if you can climinate th
stuff that’s not important and focus on what is important for policy makers. Chalrman
Krebsbach indicated she thinks that this was perhaps a requirement of the Information
Technology Committee. She thinks he is on the right track, but what is important to you (Rep
Berg) and Representative Skarphol may not be important to the rest of the body just as much as
maybe this isn’t important to someone too. She would hate to see us get so bound down with
certain requirements that today they are important, tomorrow we don’t care about. She would
like to see the flexibility for you as a representative to ask for Inform: ©  Technology, be it in

the budget section or in your committee or whatever, to provide you this information and they
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would have it available for you when you required it or requested it. Representative Skarpho!
indicated he did not disagree with her in a lot of ways, however, one thing he learned in this
process is if you don't ask for exactly what you want, you don’t sometimes get what you need.
Case in point: we had a capital projects bill in appropriations. Capital projects are a lttle
frustrating to him and he jusi thinks that often they don't get provided all of the information that
is out there, so he made a request of OMB for some information. They guve him part of what he
asked for so when he asked for the rest of the information they told him they didn’t know what
he meant. He said oh really, and they said no, we don’t know what you mean. He went back to
his desk and he got a picce of a facilitics management form that he’d been provided by someone
and he walked back to facilitics manager and Sheila Peterson of OMB and he said, this picce of
paper was given to me in strictest confidence and he said he wouldn't give it to them, but he said
he will guarantee you if anyone ever reveals the source he will never trust either ons of you
again. He said here is what it is and he opened it up and he closed it and he offered it to Sheila
and she said she didn’t want it, she wanted nothing to do with it but she would get them for him
and they got him the analyses of those projects but he hud to have something to prove that it was
there in order to get it. Now, he doesn’t like to be a distrustful individual, but he thinks at this
point in time with technofogy it is important that we have a list of things that we would like them
to provide that would be relatively short but it creates the discussion, He thinks creating the
discussion creates a comfort level, Two years from now, he would hope the department can
come back and comply with section 9 an _.ovide us with a much better list of things that they
want to provide to us and hey, he will support them [00% if they can do that. But he does think

that at this point in time to create the trust that needs to be created in spending the millions and

tens of millions and even potentially hundreds of millions of dollars that they need, we need to
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have something that’s a shorter document than that, a more rcadable document than that, now,
['m not criticizing that. He is just saying that if you can give someone two pages to huve an hour
discussion of it in a committee, it's a good thing. 1f you expect people to go home and read that
or {f you oxpect an agency to go through everything that’s in that book you are expeeting too
much, He is not trylng to be onerous with this and he doesn't believe the appropriations

committee is, he thinks they are just trying to find common ground to start with and build on.

Representative Lemieux indicated having served on both the IT interim committee and audit

and fiscal review he applauds the efforts of bringing in section 8 these specific performance
measures or specifics because sometimes we are just bombarded in audit and fiscal review with
fluff and we don’t get down to the meat and potatoes and having specifics would be good for us.
If we can work with I'TD to perfect this list he thinks as they report it here it is all here, It's just
that it's not in the specific format that it is in this bill and so he thinks what the house did in
section 8 , maybe we need to tweak it a little bit, but he supports it. Representative Berg
indicated he belleved that if he looked through this very critically and said what are the things
that he thinks for him would be most important, he thinks number 1, just an overview of projects
started, ongoing, completed and he sure that is something that is being documented now, number
7 he thinks is an issue that legislatively we hear. Agencies are complaining about they costs of
what they are being assessed for overhead in IT and he knows that {s difficult to do but he thinks
that that is one of the measures Is in our desire to consolidate everything is that more cost
effective and he believes it is than having those agencies go out and contract the private sector.
So then number 9 is something else that he looks at and he is sure that is an ongoin;; process, but
it seems to him this would be logical. And of course number 12. If you asked him what are the

things he feels are most important, those would be the four things he considers most important,
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These other issues are also issues that are important but quite frankly they are maybe issues that
individual fegislators could also ask. Chalrman Krebsbach indicated she believed that the
committee will not come to a conclusion on this one today. Representative Berg indicated that
he has been an advocate for performance measures for a long time but he looked at number 10
and this always drives him nuts, We are saying the number of hours of training completed by
cach employee, Really what it is we want is we want to know do they have the skills to deal
with technology regardless if it takes 300 hours or 800 hours or 2 hours, We want them to have
the skiils able to run that technology. His point is it’s difficult when you get into performance
measures, It's important that we are focusing on what the end result is and not just the cost of it

In government we spend too much time on the process and not ecnough time on the resulis.

Chairman Krebsbach indicated that this is where she has difficulty with micro managing rather

than allowing managers to manage their people and personnel, The committee then moved on to
section 9. Representative Berg indicated looking at the sheet that was handed out whete you
have performance measurces and the comment, don't feel that this is necessary as our strategie
business plan outlines IT’s direction, goals, and tactics. He indicated he hasn't reviewed that, he
would say if they have goals in therc they must have benchmarks in there, He thinks we need to
compare what they have with this and make sure that those are the right benchmarks, Chalrman
Krebsbach asked Mr, Wolf if he could provide the house members with the same documents
which the senators have so they can become more familiar with them. The last item to discuss
would be section 10, the performance audit. She indicated that she questions the necessity of this
and perhaps you can fill me in, Representative Lemieux indicated that asking for performance
audit with him having sat on the audit and fiscal review committee for only one interim,

performance audits often bring to light to the legislators exactly the real positive things we are
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doing with a department or an agency. Having the agency dovelop the benchmarks and bring
forward that performance data can often times enlighten the legislators, He indicated he likes

performance audits, some people don’t, He has seen them in workers comp where the

performance audit has identified things that were really good things that were happening and

then in the performatce audits where there are some things that need some enhancement whete
wo have been able to go in and facilitate the agency to do a better job to provide those services,
Chalrman Krebsbach indicated that her question on it is that the state auditors office shall
consider conducting and then, if conducted, they have that authority to do that now. We are not
demanding it we are saying shall consider and if so done. The state auditor’s office can do this
right now and she believes that an agency can request a performance audit. Representative
Skarphol indicated that having served on legislative audit and fiscal review, performance audits
are only conducted from a list compiled by legislative audit and fiscal review and are prioritized
by that committee. Chalrman Krebsbach so they have the authority to request it
Representative Skerphol indicated they have the authority to make the request of a number of
performance audits and they prioritize them and the auditors office decides whether or not it is
approptiate at that time to do it, Chairman Krebsbach inquired, how is this going to change the
audit and reviews progress, the legislative committee that requests this? Representative
Skarphol indicated that it gives some substance to prioritizing it, when it is a legislative
directive. We would like to see you do this, it gives it a little more emphasis than an ordinary
request that it be placed potentially higher on the priority list. This is not an attempt to micro
manage or to be onerous. Again it is just suggestive in nature and hopefully we can move it up
the priority list. Closing comments were offered by Representative Berg, Chairman

Krebshach, Senator Wardner, and Representative Skarphol. Chairman Krebsbach
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adjourned the committee at this time and stated that the committee will meet again next Monday

providing there are no schedule conflicts.
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Minutes: Chairman Krebsbach callgd the second session of the conference committee on SB
2043, which relates to the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the information technology
comtnittee and the information technology department, to order. It was noted by the Chairman
that all members of the committee were present. At this point Chalrman Krebsbach presented
copius of the Scnate Proposed Amendments to Engrossed SB 2043, She indicated that the
Senate version is a very plain and simple amendment that was done to satisfy some of the
concerns in the area of the finenuing/purchasing of equipment. In so doing we eliminated the
changes that were made in sections 8, 9, and 10 of :he house amendments which had previously
been proposed. The committee reviewed these amendments and Representative Berg inquired
if the senate watted to go back to saying exactly who is on that committec. What your
amendments would do is remove all of the house amendments. So, in section four where we are

allowing the governor to appoint. Chalrman Krebsbach indicated we went too far. Chalrman

Krebsbach indicated basically what the senate’s intent was that we didn’t have problems with
. ~
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the amendments to section four. She asked the committee to just ignore the top part of that
proposed amendment and the senate would basically like to include the new language on page
two, line 17 and also page two line 19, and then we would want to delete the changes to section

8, 9, and 10 and remove those sections. That would be the intent of the senate. Representative

Borg indicated the one question he lias would be in the amendments you have, you would be

saying they could sign a financing agreement for any period of time, under three years they
could sign the agreement without budget section approval, but they could sign a financing
agreement for any period of years with the budget section approval. So if they want to do a 20
year finance deal they could do that if the budget section says OK. Chairman Krebsbach
indicated she thought that was rather doubtful but, she guesses that that’s the way the language
would read. In ciher words not to exceed a period of three years unless approved by the budget
section, She was sure that there might be a case where it would go four years or five years
something like that. Representative Berg indicated that there was one issuc that was fairly clear
in the IBL Committee as well as the Appropriations Committee on the House was that we did not
want to create long term obligations under this. We wanted to do a go slow approach and it was
his understanding from the department that most of their financing would be in that three year
period. So he guessed unless there was some new information he doesn’t know if we want to
open that door back up. The second part of your amendments that talk about going ahead with
any financing as long s the aggregate does not exceed or as long as the agreement does not
exceed a million dollars. That was something we talked about the last time we met. He thinks
that it makes sense to have some level in that. Senator C, Nelson indicated we are cquating the
5 million dollars to an actual amount rather than a relationship to some of the numbers as a line

item in the budget. Representative Berg indicated so we are saying that the aggregate of any
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finance agreement during a biennium exceeds 5 million dollars the department shall report the

finance agreement to the budget scction for it’s information. So, If it's 50 million dollars, what
we are saying here is that if they had 10 projects of less than a million dollars, but a dollar less
than a million, they could just go ahead and do those. And as long as they weren't financed
longer than 3 years they could just go ahead and do them. Chalrman Krebsbach indicated
that's the way the amendment now reads, Are they not limited to a dollar amount? She
indicated she was getting a no on that from Mike Ressler. Mike Ressler explained to the
committee that the maximum they could borrow is 5 million dollars. So, lets say we did five of
them and the sixth one comes in at the same amount, now we have exceceded the aggregate. It
doesn’t matter what plans we have. Representative Berg indicated but you are not limited to
the 5 million. Basically what this amendment says is there is no cap, there is no limit.
Chalrman Krebsbach indicated that the language is not the same as she had requested be put
into the amendment. The discussion continued and Chalrman Krebsbach went on to discuss
how the language of the amendments proposed might be changed. The wording needed
additional clarification. It was determined that council would need to work on the wording to
make clearer the intent of the proposed amendments, Representative Skarphol indicated that
he would like to see in there if possible that if the aggregate reaches a million that the budget
section be advised so that say, just for example, only to create a comfort level, but lets say that
they do 3 projects that cost $350,000 a picce. Let us know you have done it, let us know why, it
just gives us better communications with the department. He is not saying that they have to
have approval, just that they have to report aggregates of a million dollars. Representative Berg
indicated he would like to sec a report to the budget section of all the things that are financed.

That way a report can be made at least quaiterly or semiannually to the budget section indicating
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here are all the projects that are financed. Any project that is financed, | guess we are saying is

that if we have a particular project that is a million dollars that they are going to run it through

the budget section. Here's what we are doing, let us know ifit's a problem and if it is a big
project like that hopefully thero is a time line involved, it won't slow them up. Having said that
we also have a running total of all the projects that are financed. That way we know at any time
where that cumulative total is, So you will always know where that aggregate is, He just is
raising that point, Just in trying to put together some of the ideas that the committee had the last
time it inet, that was one of the things he thought would be important to put in here. At this time
Representative Berg presented proposed amendments which the housc is suggesting be added to
the bill. He reviewed what the amendments would do. Page 2, line 19 basically says that it can’t
exceed three years and really the only change in here from the original amendments is that if it is
in excess of 1 miltion dollars it needs budget section approval before executing the financing
agreement. Everything else is the same. The rest of page one really has to do with the makeup
of that board. Those were the other house amendments, If you go to page 2 of the amendments,
section 5 relates to that as well. Allowing the governor to appcint the board. Section 8 would,
what we tried to do here is say that the department shall prepare and present an annual report to
the information and technology committee. That is what they are doing now, Currently they arc
reporting at every single meeting what they are doing and he guesses that it might be helpful for
everyone to see where we are going to ‘ry to kind of pull together things on an annual basis. In
addition to the presentational annual report to the information technology committee, the
department shall present a summary of the annual report to the budget and audit and fiscal
review. The things that he felt most important to be shared are number one the projects started,

ongoing, completed, the budget costs, the actual costs, estimated implementation date, and actual
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implomentation date. The second is what we talked about Lefore which is really just an ongoing

report of everything that has been financed. The third would be some evaluation of the
cost/benefit analysis on the completed projects. Four is just a comparison of the costs for the
technology versus the private scctor. Number five would be just the technology plans and their
review process and number six would be their detailed statewide information technology plan.
There might be, again the whole concept here is that we have a boiled down version that is a
couple, three pages of this reporting that is casily shared with more legislators so they can
understand exactly where we are, where we are going and also measure the effectiveness of the
department. Sections 9 and 10 remain the same as the house amendments that were originally
proposed. He thinks section 9 where we're talking about coming up with performance measures,
really we’ve outlined those in section 8 to some degree, Section 10 is just that it’s looked at
from and audit standpoint. Senator C. Nelson inquired about intent. She noted that the house
feels more comfortable with attaching a line item amount rather than a set dollar amount and she
wondered if she was interpreting that right, this was regarding page 2, line 19. Representative
Skarphol indicated how it is done is not really an issue with him he just thinks that it is neater to
say the line item because that’s a specific number, it's not an issue. Representative Berg
indicated that the only issue is that we are putting this into statutc and so he personally has a
problem with putting a dollar amount in that would need to be reviewed. Three bienniums from
now it may be $10 million dollars, Senator C. Nelson indicated that her second one deals with,
maybe it’s just the way she is interpreting this. On page 2 section 8, the department shall present
a summary of the annual report to the budget section. Yet, over in subsection 6 you want a
detailed description. Somehow to her a summary report doesn’t include detailed descriptions.

This also has a summary. Obviously that is filed somewhere else anyway because they have to
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have a detailed plan, it is just the semantics. A summary sheet to her is like two pages long, A

detailed description of your information plan could be another book of substantial size,

Representative Skarphol indicated he agreed with Senator Nelson, Rather than that in item six

he really would like the department to try to find a way to show us benefits of IT. Now, he’s not
trying to be hard-nosed or anything but we always talk about the savinygs thut we are going lo get
from IT or the benefits that we are going to get from IT and at least from his perspective and he
knows he’s talked to several others who feel the same way. It is frustrating because we are not
seeing that yet. What he would like to suggest is language that would say projccted or real
streamlining or savings of resources or personnel if we can in some way so they can try to show
us how you know information technology has helped us realize savings in travel budgets, savings
in personnel, whatever. He is not trying to tell them what to show us, he is just trying to find out
if theee is a benefit to all of this other than more information, Senator Krebsbach inquired if
Representative Skarphol would feel comfortable if there were items included in your list from
items | through 6, if they found a way to incorporate those within their report. Representative
Skarphol indicated that we get a lot of books and very few of us ever read them all. We pick the
one we think is important and then we read it. A summary sheet in addition to the book would
be a wonderful thing and if the summary sheet peaks our curiosity, we can read the book. That is
what he (s trying to get to, The summary sheet that we get a lot of information on creates a
comfort level and then if we want to read the book, we read the book, we ask the questions, If
the information is in the book, it shouldn’t be hard to compile it onto a couple of sheets of paper
so that we can kind of purus it in a meeting. The discussion of this issue continued with
Chairman Krebsbach and Representative Skarphol exchanging questions and responses.

Representative Berg expressed his viewpoint and concerns relative to this issue. The discussion
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continued at length with various members of the committee expressing viewpoints of the
proposed amendments that were a part of the discussion, Curt Wolf of ITD and Mike Ressler
of ITD provided input and points of view to the committee concerning the proposed umendments
and what expectations these would hold for their agency. In spite of a lengthy discussion of the
points of view of the committee it was determined that a common ground could not be reached at
this meeting, It was decided to continue working on amendments which could be brought to
another meeting and perhaps after further disciission resolution could be reached. Chalrman
Krebsbach indicated that the legislative council will continue to assist in drafting amendments

which might be acceptable to the committee members, There was nothing further so Chairman

, Krebsbach adjourned the committee until a later date.
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Minutes: The third session of the Cogfdrence Committee on SB 2043 was called to order by
Chairman Krebsbach. She noted thatall members of the conference committee were present.
Discussion was opened at this time and Representative Berg presented copies of proposed
amendments to the committee members. The version number was .0510. He indicated that these
amendments are the same as the amendments that were offered in yesterdays discussion with the
exception of some minor changes. 1t was noted that on page 2, item number 1, they added the
word “major” projects. They also added at the end of that line where it talks about the estimated
implementation date for each project, they added the “actual implementation date for the
project”. The only other change is in number six in which we eliminated the detailed plan

language. Senator C. Nelson inquired if the house would have any major heartburn if on page

- two line 19, that was a purchase of software, equipment, or services. Representative Berg

indicated he certainly did not have a problem with that, He guesses the only question he would

have is on the financing of services. Services are generally used, paid for, used, paid for, used,
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paid for. He guessed his question was what kind of services would we be talking about or are
these'projccts where they come and say here’s the hardware, here’s the software, and here’s the
service fees for the total package. It's 1 million dollars and they don’t want to break it apart.
Mike Ressler of ITD indicated where that could come into play is lets say the ERP system where
we are actually going to buy hardware, software, well then the majority of the costs will be in the
implementation, which is the actual development of that, His concern is that if we don't put that
in there the Attorney General’s Office will say well, you can’t borrow that‘part of it.
Representative Berg indicated you would almost look at the services as being the programming,
Versus and annual ongoing service fee. Representative Skarphol inquired if there was word
that would probably be better than just plain “services”, Is there a word in your industry that
would be more defining than just plain “services”. Services is pretty general and some people
might misconstrue it. If that is the best we can do, it is the best we can do. Mike Ressler
indicated “technical services” , he guessed they just used the wotd “services” all the time.

Maybe the word “implementation services” would be better. Representative Berg indicated his
intention was you have a big project, there are different components of the project, but this is
start to finish and there is a price tag for the whole thing and that price tag may be for labor, it
may be for equipment or it may be for software, He would certainly interpret that as part of this
whole package. Senator Krebsbach indicated she would think that was correct except for the

interpretation that they receive from the attorney generals office. We need to be more specific.

Representative Skarphol indicated he thinks that it might also be appropriate as long we are

going to redo this thing that on the first amendments on line 10 that we may go ahead and
incorporate the additional language on the first sentence, He indicated he was speaking about the

paragraph on page 2, line 19, in the first sentence there in your amendment you have some




Page 3

Senate Government and Vetereus Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2043 Conference Committee Session 3
Hearing Date April 24, 2001

additional language that says unless approved by the budget section of the legislative council
which in essence would give 1TD the option of coming to the budget section and sayiiig we
would be much better off financially to run this out for four years and he indicated he didn’t have
any heartburn with that, Three years is the time frame they have to deal with these unless they
come to the budget section and budget section says OK. Really in essence we can’t obligate
ourselves for three years because he was sure that every contract they sign says contingent upon
continuing appropriations. Chairman Krebsbach asked the committee if they had any problems
with the addition of that language. Representative Berg indicated that he has two concerns.
One concern, and he really doesn't want to make a big deal of this, he certainly doesn’t think
with all of the discussion we have had that this is going to be a big deal or that the players today
have any intention of abusing it. He does have concern though, we are moving into an area that
we are not familiar with, His understanding is that we are not looking beyond three years. He
thinks that that kind of opens the door wide open. Having said that the other concern that he has
and this more of a philosophical concern, and he didn’t raise it yet, but, we have to be careful
about what authority we delegate to the budget section. When we, even with the amendments as
they are, we are delegating authority to say yes or no on this technology to the budget section and
when we say you can do any financing that you want, as long as the budget section approves it
we then further are delegating the authority of the legislature to the budget section. He has a
fundamental concern with doing that. He thinks again that we would like to think that everyone
that is there when this is presented, the budget section is fully aware of what’s going on and how
it's coming together, On the other hand he has been a member of the budget section and
sometimes key people ate not there that are involved in technology. So, what's my point? His

point is he is not going to, he is concerned about doing that but it's not a huge deal to him.
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Senator Wardner indicated he can understand where Representative Berg is coming from. He
is concerned that the budget section is going to become a mini legislature. One of the issues
Representative Berg is concerned with is therc a reason that would need to look beyond three
years at this point or is that just come option. His understanding was that in our testimony
before, three years was perfectly acceptable with the type of financing we’ve been doing. Curt
Wolf noted that the only issue is what makes economic sense here. The only times it has been
beyond three years is where it has been a major purchase so that by spreading the payments out
we were able to keep our rates lower and that was the only reason. He indicated he personally
doesn't like debt he would rather pay things off faster than slower, but if we have a major
upgrade to a piece of equipment we would attempt to keep the rates where they are now and
finance it over four years instead of three to do so. The discussion continued with input from
Representative Berg, Representative Skarphol, and Mike Ressler (Tape 1, Side A, Meter #'s
8.0 to 12.8) Representative Lemieux inquired of Mr. Wolf in three years, four years, where do
you want us to be on that? Mr, Wolf indicated in the last four years these limitations have not
been an issue, but what is going to happen in the next two years that could change that he thinks
that technology might be one of the reasons we need a suggestion to change this, but he couldn't
give you a good example today. He thinks if in the next session when we come back then we
might see the need to change this. For clarification Senator Krebsbach indicated that you do
not need to have further extension or wording that would give authority by the approval of the
budget section to change or implement any changes that you would need. You don't fee! that is
necessary. She inquired if she was correct in hearing what you are saying. Mr. Wolf added some
comments, Chalrman Krebsbach indicated that it has come up in every session that the

legislature is delegating and abdicating too much of it's authority to the budget section and yet




Page 5
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2043 Conference Committee Session 3

Hearing Date April 24, 2001

it's really our most feasible entity to direct things of this nature through if We need such done
duri, g that interim time. So, it’s a question of do we want to give the leniency and take if
needed or do we want to hold tight to where we ate. At this point Representative Berg moved
the adoption of the amendments as proposed by the committee with the addition of the change to
include “implementation services”. Representative Skarphol seconded the motion.

Discussion

continued. Senator C. Nelson indicated that she does not see the need for section 10 until we get
section 9 done. Section 10 doesn’t kick in until next legislative session anyway. She just docsn’t
think there is any need for section 10 at this time. Comments were offered by Representatives
Skarpho! and Berg indicating they had no problem with removing section 10. Representative
Lemieux offered his comments on section 10 in which he indicated he would like to see this left
in. Senator Wardner offered his comments. Some final comments were offered by Senator
Wardner, Representative Berg, Curt Wolf, Senator C. Nelson and Chairman Krebsbach,
Senator C. Nelson asked the maker of the original motion and the second add the deletion of
gsection 10 to their original motion. Representative Berg and Representaﬁve Skarphol
indicated they were in agreement. Chairman Krebsbach restated the motion which was the that
the house recede from it’s amendments and the committee amend the bill using the version 0510

with the changes stipulated in the committee discussion. Roll Call vote indicated 6 Yeas, 0

~Nays, and 0 Absent or Not Voting. Copies of the completed amendments will be given to each

committee member for their approval. The committee was adjourned.
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10179.0508 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff tor
Title. Representative Berg
April 20, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages $232-1235 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1360-1362 of the House Journal, and that Engrossed Senate Blll No. 2043
be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "to" Insert “create and enact a new section to chapter 54-59 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the preparation of an information technology
department annual report; to"

Page 1, line 4, after "department” insert *; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to
provide for a performance audit of the information technology department”

Page 2, lim? 19, atter the period insert Anm%egmemxo_ﬁnwmrﬁmgnmm_'smmgm
equipment may not exceed a period of three years. The department shall submit any
intended fin for the purchase of .ggnmrghgz equipment under this

]

or equipment.”

Page 4, llneI 1, replace "Section” with "If Senate Bill No. 2251 does not become effective,
section” _

Page 4, overstrike tine 12

Page 4, line 13, overstrike “representing a*, remove "wotkforce training advisory board", and
overstrike the comma

Page 4, line 14, remove "one membetr”, overstrike "representing®, and remove "clty or county”

Page 4, Iine 16, remove "govarnment: one member representing the greater North Dakota
association” and overstrike *, one member* '

Page 4, overstrike line 16
Page 4, line 17, overstrike "commission to operate In this state,”

Page 4, line 18, ramove "one member representing”

Pags 4, Yine 19, remove "Indian tribes, and one member representing th icin
industry" and overstrike the period

Page 8, after line 3, insert:

. Page No. 1 10179.0508




"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. If Senate Bill No. 2251 becomes effective,
section 54-59-07 of the 1999 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code Is
amended and reenacted as follows:

54-59-U7. Statewide-wide-araa-netwark State information technology
advisory commiltee. The statewide-wide-area-network state information technology
advisory committee consists of the chief information officer or the officer's designee.

who is a nonvoting member; the state-eeurt-administrater director of the depariment of
economic development and finance or the edministraters director’s designeerwith-the

approvat-of-he-ehieHustioo-of-the-supreme-eeurt; the commissioner of higher education
or the commissioner's designee; the chairman of the intormation technology council of
North Dakota or a designee; the director of the North Dakota workforce development

it or ignee; the chairman of th lonal technol ngit or
designee: and rire eight members appointed by the governor.
appeint-two-members-representing-state-ageneles-ene-membe

other appointess of the governor serve at the pleasure of the governor. The governor
shall designate the chairman of the committee. The departrnent shall provide staft
services to the committee. Except tor the commissioner of higher education and the
representatives of state agencies who receive compensation for their duties as state
ofticers or employees, members of the committee are entitled to be compensated for
time spent in attendance at meetings of the committee and for other travel as approved
by the chairman of the committee at the rate of sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day
and are entitled to reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in
the same manner as other state officials. The compensation and expenses are to be
paid from appropriations for the department. The committee shall advise the
department witk g-planning-and-implementation-of-wido-area-networcoerviees

regarding statewide information technology ptanning,

cludi viding electronic government services for citizens and businesses,
developing technology Infrastructure to support economic development and workforce
{raining, and developing other statewide information technology Initiatives and policy."

Page 6, after line 15, Insert:

"SECTION 8. A new saction to chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

mmmmmmmwm The department shall

prepar 886 e Inform ogy committee, In

N to the presentation of the annual report 1o the information technology

~ committee, the depariment shall present a summary of the annual report to the budget
ative audit and fiscal review committee. The report must

A list of projucts started. ongoing, and completed durl ludi
Lte_lﬁmd_burggg nrle u?%] r:1ce0s;im r| elr:ajgj_g_[
each project,
2. Alistotall projects for which financing agreements have been executed, .
projects,

Page No. 2 10179.0508




4. Acomparison of the depariment's rates charged for services compared to
rates charged for comparable services in other states and in the private
¥

sector.

5. Information regarding the information technology plans including the
dﬂpmmmw_wrwwr he number of plans reviewed, and the

6. Adoetailed description of the department’s statewide information technology
plan,

SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PERFORMANCE MEASURES. ltis the
intent of the legislative assembly that the information technology department develop
performance measures to assist the legislative assembly in determining the
effectiveness and efficiency of the department's operations during the biennium
beginning July 1, 2001, and ending June 30, 2003. Each performance measure must
include a benchmark for targeted department performance based on national, other
states, ot private sector performance. The department shall report to the information
technology committee and the leglslative audit and fiscal review committee during the
2001-02 interim on the performance measures developed.

SECTION 10. PERFORMANCE AUDIT. The state auditor's office shall
consider conducting a performance audit of the information technology department
during the 2003-05 biennium. The review, if conducted, must include a review and
evaluation of the psrformance measures developed by the information technology
department during the 2001-03 biennium."

Renumber accordingly

10179.0508
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10179.0509 Prepared by the Legislative Council statf for
Title. Senators Krebsbach, Wardner, and C. Nelsan
April 23, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1232-1235 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1360-1362 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2043
be amended as follows:

Page 2, Ilnal 17, replace "or" with an underscored comma and after "software” insert ", or
services” .

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert " reement to finance the purchase of equipmen
mwummmgmuwmﬁeaﬁs un lﬁﬁe v ﬁi?h
f the legis! il. An nt to finance the purchase of
mmmmgmﬁ&_sg_m_gx_mm milllon dollars unless approved
by ti f the f th t section does not approve
the execution of an agreament, thg_dgnaMma ¥ not proceed with the proposed
financing arrangement. If M!Q_QL&DL_QW_LBM nts during a
blennium exceeds five mill on dglezﬁq_emams_isna_gmﬁ_m_mngg
agreements to the budget section for its information.”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 10179.0509




10179.0509 Prepared by the Legislative Councll staff for
Title. Sanators Krebsbach, Wardner, and C. Nelson
April 23, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2043

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1232-1235 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1360-1362 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2043
be amended as follows:

Page 2, llnei17. replace "or" with an underscored comma and after "software” insert ", or
gervices”

Page 2, line 19, after the perlod insert "An agreement to finance the purchase of equipment,

rvi n t X riod of three years unless approved by the

l fh l l gggungil. An agreement to finance the purchase of

not ex ne million dollars unless approved
h ll ive councll. If the budget section does not approve

mmmmm@_m enLMMMMQMMQ

financing arrangement, If mana&mmunam_e.m_u

blennium exceeds five mil llar artment shall r o @ (fravadia

w_mmmg_

inw

Renumber accordingly
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10179.0510 : Prepared by the Legislative Council stalf for

Title. Representative Berg
o April 24, 2001

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2643

That the House recede from ils amendments as printed on pages 1232-1235 of the Senate
Journal and pages 1360-1362 of the House Journal, and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2043
be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new section to chapter 54-59 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the preparation of an information technology
department annual report; to"

Page 1, line 4, after “department” insert *; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to
provide for a performance audit of the information technology department” spebnt

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert “An_agLe_zmgn: éﬁ ﬂnian
ulpmen not exceed a perlod of three years. Whe de
i%nﬁgﬁ ﬁén hase of software

e :
t f softwar

: ment shall submit-an
¢ing proposal for the pure or eguipment under this

islativ ncil before executing a financing agreement. if the budget section does

W QN subsection, which is In excess of one million dollars, to the budget section of the
b

. \'\ \\Q'S

®

2
o
so¥

o

not approve the execution of a financing agreement, the department may not proceed

44 with the proposed financing arrangement. The department may finance the purchase of

¥

v,\le \"\\"

\N( software or equipment only o the extent the purchase amount does not exceed the
1 t iated fo the de ent durin t biennium for equipment.”

Page 4, Iine‘ 1, reb‘ace “Section” with "If Senate Bilf No. 2251 does hot become effective,
section”

Page 4, overstrike line 12

Page 4, line 13, overstrike "representing a*, remove "workforce training advisory board", and
overstrike the comma

Page 4, line 14, remove "gne member", overstrike "representing”, and remove "city or county”

Page 4, line 15, remove "gavern ; er senting th t North Dako
assoclation" and overstrike ", one member”

Page 4, overstrike line 16
Page 4, line 17, overstrike "commission to operate in this state,”
Page 4, line 18, remove "one member representing”

Page 4, line 19, remove "Indian tribes
industry" and overstrike the peri

.

Page 5, after line 3, insert:

10179.0510




"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. If Senate Bill No, 2251 becomes effeclive,
section 54-59-07 of the 1999 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows: (

54-59-07. Statewide-wide-area-network State information technology -
advisory committee. The stetowide-wide-area-retwerk state information technology
advisory committee consists of the chief information officer or the officer's designee,
who is a nonvoting member; the state-seurt-adminisirater director of the department of

gconomic development and finance or the administraters director's desigiee—with-the

\ : the commissioner of higher education
or the commissioner's designee; the chairman of the Information techinplogy council of

North Dakota or a designee; the director of the North Dakota workforce development
il or ignee; the ¢hairman of the educational technol il or

designee; and aire elght members appointed by the governor. ¥he-geverner-shall

ether appointees of the governor serve at the pleasure of the governor. The governor

shall designate the chairman of the committee. The department shall provide staff

services to the committee. Except for the commissioner of higher education and the
representatives of state agencies who receive compensation for their duties as state

officers or employees, members of the committee are entitled to be compensated for

time spent in attendance at meetings of the committee and for other travel as approved

by the chairman of the committee at the rate of sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day

and are entitled to reimbursement for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in

the same manner as other state officlals. The cormpensation and expenses are to be (’
paid from appro The committee shall advise the "
department with-respeet-tog mertation-of wide-area-netwe

Ezv&ded-bﬁhedepeﬁwm reqarding statewide information technology planning,
juding providing electronic government services for citizens and businesses,
developing technology Infrastructure to support economic development and workforce
training. and developing other statewide information technology initiatives and policy."

Page 6, after line 15, insert:

"SECTION 8. A new section lo chapter 54-59 of the North Dakota Century
Code Is created and enacted as follows.

rmation technology department annual report. The department shall
present an ¢ i logy committee. In

nnual report to the information techno
he presentation of the annual report o the information technology

he department shall present a summary of the annual teport 10 the budget
aw commitiee, The report must

of major projects started, ongoing, and completed during the year
including_related budgeted and actual costs and {
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‘_Ll rison of th nt's r harged for services compared to
rates charged for comparable services in other states and in the private
sector.

5. Information regarding the information technology plans including the
c_!gggrgmg?s‘gl plaa review process, the number of plans reviewed, and the
number of plans approved.

6. Adescription of the benefits to the state resulting from Its investment in
nformation technology.

SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - PERFORMANCE MEASURES. It is the
intent of the lagislative assembly that the information technology department develop
performance measures to assist the legislative assembly in determining the
effectiveness and efficlency of the department's operations during the biennium
beginning July 1, 2001, and ending June 30, 2003. Each psrformance measure must
include a benchmark for targeted department performance based on national, other
states, or private sector parformance. The department shall report to the information
technology committee, the budget section, and the legislative audit and fiscal review
committee during the 2001-02 Interim on the performance meastures developed.

SECTION 10, PERFORMANCE AUDIT. The state auditor's office shall
consider conducting a performance audit of the Information technology depariment
during the 2003-05 biennium. The review, if conducted, must include a review and
evaluation of the performance measures developed by the information technology
department during the 2001-03 biennlum."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 10179.0510




Roll Call Vote #:

Date: Lf/,?j/a)
, /

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2043

Senate  GOVERNMENT AND VETERAN'S AFFAIRS Committee

Subcommittee on
or
Conference Committee

Legislative Council AmendﬁentNum ro,. o !
e " Pecae— Fwerd

Action Taken Fu‘ v‘ﬂ\ef an -
Motion Made By g Seconded 9,
ap- 6erq By ‘EHF ggy 7]
» ~ Senators Representatives
SENATOR KREBSBACH . REP. BERG

| SENATOR WARDNER . REP. SKARPHOL
. | SENATOR C. NELSON REP, LEMIEUX

Total  (Yes) ( /) No 0

Absent ‘ ) 0

Floor Assighment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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Engrossed SB 2385 pessed and the title was agreed 1o,

L al i 22t li Tl

REPORY OF STANDING C

‘ OMMITTER
a8 H Aproumm Commiittee . Timm, Chalrman) recommends
—%‘l"d ENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so(n:c:ondod. rooommom’n DO PASS
(20 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING)., Engrossed 8B 2043 was placed

on the Sixth order on the calondar,

in Heu of the amendments adopted by the House as prinled on s 1028 and 1029 of the
House Joumal, Engrossed Senate Bl No, 2043 is amended as fol

Page 1'. line 1, after "to" insert “create and enact a new section to chapter 54-59 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the preparation of an Information technology
department annual report; to"

Page 1, line 4, after "department” insert *; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to
provide for a performance audit of the information technology department”

Page 2, line 19, after the period Insert “An agreement to finance the purchase of software o
SO i 1.% A, Lt 7S ummllu A'.-.l llr‘.»;'. IS TIS [' .l. i NI (]

LIRS I e ] ]WILNYWRIS O SIS A0 81
LS ARN | . BRI Latte, .- RAIRH - AL NS 1,01%1 ALY NS
ik o Hiedl $he- SIK-a-Hh-l -
A Y]] 111 [ 4 0,40, - -0 Al [ 183 B8, 0,0 5,0 NNANCcIng LRSI ] (18
BOADNCR N8 DUIVNIESE QI 3OIware of aQuiRinent oy 10 e exient e

A IR _QINCUIL SURTIHIRIeU 10 100 Qepanmernt qunng

i TN U udIgng O

s R, bl
LIoget

7vT"ut‘;:l . ‘“‘ 1' A" ';'.ll “;
Page 4, kne 14 replace “Section” with “If Senate Bill No. 2251 does not become effective,

Page 4, overstrike line 12
Page 4, line 13, overstrike "representing a", remove "worklorce raining advisory board", and
overstrike the comma

Page 4, line 14, remove "ona member”, overstrike "representing”, and remove "city or county"

Page 4, line 15, remove “government. one member representing the gregter North Dakola
association” snd overstrike *, one member”

Page 4, overstrike line 16

Page 4, line 17, overstrike "commission to operate in this state,”
Page 4, line 18, remove "onie member representing”

Page &, after line 3, insert:

*SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. If Senata Bl No. 2251 becomes effective,
section 54-50-07 of the 1999 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows.
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time spent

by the charman of the committee at (he rate of sixty-two dolars and fity cents per day
and are entiled to reimbursament for their actual and nmmry oxXpenses incurrod in

the same manner as other siate officials, The comgonu and oxponm are {0 be

paid from appropriations for the de dmont. comm shell advise the

NCONOITHC OF

Page 6, after line 15, insert:

*SECTION 8. A new section to chapter 84-89 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows
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measures (0 assist the legisiative sssembly in determining the
and efficlency of the depertments operstions during the biennium
July 1, 2001, end ending June 30, 2003. Each performence messure must

bonohmorkfor ted riment performance based on national, other
ot i p.rtmom shali report to the information

or performance. The depa
oommltm and the legislative audi and fiscal review committes during the
2001»02 on the performance measures d( ‘sioped.

OIOTION 10. PERFORMANCE AUDIT. The state audior's office shall
performance audit of the information technology department

r conducting a
during the 2003-05 blonnlum The review, if conducted, must include a review and
evaiuation of the performance measures developed by the information technology
depariment during the 2001-03 blennium.”

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
Dept. 112 - Information Technology Depariment - House Action

This amendment makes the following changes:
» Change the membership of the Stete information Technology Advisory Commitiee.

%%

%

' Requires the depariment to prepare an annual report ard present i to the Legisiative Council's
information Technology Committee and the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committes.

+ Provides leghaiative intent that the Information Technology Deparimient develop performance
measures,

 Provides that the State Auditor's office consider conducting a performance audit of the Information
Technology Department rluring the 2003-06 blennium.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL
88 2043: A BILL for an Act (o create and enact a new section to chapter 54-59 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the preparation of an information technology
annual report, to amend and reenact section 54-35-15.2, subsection 4 of

section 84-50-05, and sections 64-59-08, 54-50-07, 54-59-11, and 54-58-16 of the

Nodh Dakota Contury Code, relating to powers, amm and responsibiities of the
committes and the information technology department; to

m [ m 3’ bqum lntont. and to provide for a performance audit of the

ROLL CALL
The being on the final pa of the amended bi¥, which has been raad, and has
mroeommndaﬁon of DO“?’%'SS. the roli was called and there were 756 YEAS,

16 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING,

YEAS: Asrsvold; Beliew, Belter; Berg, Boehm; Brandenburg; Brekke, Brusegaard; Byerly;
Cariisle; clfbon Clark; DeKrey, Delzer; Deviin; Dosch; Drovdal; Eckre;
Froouch Froseth; GaMn. Grande,; Gmu. Grumbo; Guntar Haas; Hanson. Hawken,;
Herbel,; Humkor Jensen; Johnson, D Kaspor Keiser; Kelsch, R, Kerzman;
Klrmbuty'KblnF Kiein, M.; Klemin; Kliniske,K ;Kn:polman; Kroeber;
Maragos; Martinson; Meler; Metcalf;, Monson; Nelfson; Nicholas, Niemeier; Nottestad;
Pietsch; Pollert, Porbr' Rennor. Rennerfeldt, Ruby. Sande Severson; Skarphol;
Svodjan: Thoreson, B.; Thoreson, L.; Tﬁoman. Timm; ald; Weller, Wentz;
Wikenheiser; Wlnrich; Wramham; Spoakor Bemnstein

NAYS: Boucher; C : Delmore; Ekstrom; Fairfleld; Glassheim; Gulleson; Keish, S.;
Kretschmar; Lemieux; Mahoney; Mueller; Onstad; Schmidt, Solberg; Wamer

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Huether; Johnson, N.; Kempenich; Lioyd; Price; Tho:pe; Weisz

Engrossed SB 2043 passed and the title was agreed to.

Ll
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

orth Dakota Cenlury Code (NDCC) Section
8-15.2 requires the Legislative Councli, during each
ium, 1o appoint an Information Technology
imittee In the same manner as the Council appoints

r inlerim commitlees. The commitiee is to consist of

members of the House of Representatives and three

bers of the Senate. The Chief Information Officer of
state serves as an ex officio nonvoting member of
committee.
Jorth Dakota Cenlury Code Section 54-35-16.2
lishes the dulies of the commiltee. The committee
wquired lo:

1. Meet at least once each calendar quarter.
Recelve a report from the Chief Information
Officer of the stale at each meeting.

Review the business plan of the Information
Technology Depariment.

Address macro-level questions relsling to the
Information Technology Department,

Review the activities of the Information Tech-

nology Department,

Review statewide information technology
standards.

Review the siatewide infor

plan, '
Conduct sludies of information technology effi-
clency and security.

Make recommendations regarding established
or proposed information technology programs

ation technology

and information technology acquisition by the

executive and judicial branches,

Review the cosi-benefil analysis of any major
information technology project of an executive
or judicial branch agency. A major project is a
project with a cost of $250,000 or more in one
biennium or a total cost of $500,000 or more.
Perform periodic reviews to ensure that a major
information technology project is on its
projected schedule and within its cost
projections.

North Dakota Century Code Section 54-35-16.3
uthorizes the commitiee to review any information tech-
ology project or information technology plan. If the
ommittee delermines that a project or plan is at risk of
alling to achleve its intended resulls, the committee may
ecommend to the Office of Management and Budget the
wspension of the expenditure of moneys appropriated
or a project or plan. The Office of Management and
3udget may suspend the expenditure authority if the
»Mfice agrees with the recommendation of the committee.

The Legislative Council assigned to the committee

‘he responsibility to receive reports from the Chief Infor-

mation Officer and the Information Technology Depart-

ment pursuant to NDCC Sections 54-59-12 and
54-59-13. Section 54-59-12 requires the Chief Informa-
tion Officer io report lo the Legislative Council regarding

the coordination of services with political subdivisions.
That seclion also requires the Chief information Officer
and the commissioner of the Stale Board of Higher
Education 1o report to the Legislative Council regarding
coordination of Information technology belween the
information Technology Department and higher educa-
tion. Section 54-58-13 requires the Information Tech-
nology Depariment {0 report fo the Legislative Counck if
the department finds that an executive branch agency or
institution does not agree to conform to its information
technology plan or comply with statewide policies and
standards.

Committee members during the 1999-2000 Interim
were Senators Larry J. Robinson (Chalrman), Ken
Solberg, Rod St. Aubyn {until his resignation from the
lLegislative Assembly on August 30, 2000), and Rich
Wardner and Representatives Mary Ekstrom, Doug
Lemieux, Blair Thoreson, and Robin Welsz and Chief
Information Officer Curlis L. Wolfe. Before the appoint-
ment of Mr. Wolfe as Chief Information Officer, Mr. Jim
Heck and Mr. Mike Ressler served on the commiltee as
Chief Informalion Officer.

The committee submitted this report lo the Legislative
Council at the blennial meeting of the Council in
November 2000, The Council accepted the report for
submission lo the 5§7th Legislative Assembly.

BACKGROUND
The Legislative Assembly has been closely invoived
in the development of information technology at the state
level for over thirty years,

1967-68 and 1969-70 Studies

As a result of a Legislative Council study during the
1967-68 interim, the 41st Legislative Assembly enacted
legislation establishing the Central Data Processing Divi-
sion (renamed the Information Services Division in 1989)
for the purpose of establishing an electronic data proc-
essing center to be used by all state agencies except the
institutions of higher education, Job Service North
Dakota, and the Office of the Adjutant General. As a
result of a Legislative Council study durinv the 1969-70
interim, a higher education computer network was
funded at three institutions and was later extended to all
institutions of higher education under the State Board of

Higher Education.

1979-80 Study

As a result of a Legislative Councll study during the
1979-80 interim, the 47th Legislative Assembly defined
the responsibilities of the Information Services Division
and state agencies for the use of data processing
resources and provided that the director of the division
was to supervise all executive branch agency data proc-
essing activities.
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1995-98 Study

Recommendations resulting from a Legislative
Council study during the 1995-98 interim were contained
in 1997 House Bill No, 1034--thal agencles prepare
information technology plans; that the Information Serv-
ices Division establish statewide Information technology
policies, siandards, and guidelines; that the division and
the State Board of Higher Education meet to coordinate
their information technology systems and services; that
the State Auditor provide information syslems audits of
information technology systerns; and that the division
perform information technology management reviews of
state agencies except higher education instilutions.
Before final passage, House Bill No. 1034 was amended
to involve the Legislative Council in the information tech-
nology planning and audit process and to remove the
State Auditor from the Information systems audit

process,

1997-98 Study

During the 1997-98 interim, the Legislalive Council
established the interim Information Technology
Commiittee and delegated o the committee the Council's
authority to study emerging technology and evaluate its
impact on the state's system of information technology
(that authority was repealed in 1899). The commitlee
was also delegated the Counci's responsibllity to
receive reports regarding coordination of technology
sysiems.

The commitiee received information regarding infor-
mation technology plans in other states and reviewed
guidelines developed by the Information Services Divi-
sion for agencies to follow in preparing the information
technology plans required as a result of 1997 House BIll
No. 1034, The committee also received information from
several slate agencies regarding their eflorts during the
information technology planning process.

The committee reviewed the status of the slatewide
network, which was established in 1982, In 1991 the
network's backbone was converted to dighal facilities,
and the Interactive Video Network was implemented.
Because the committee determined that the current
network resources needed o be analyzed before deter-
mining whether any change in the network should be
made, the commitlee contracted with Inteliant Corpora-
tion for an inventory of all current networks used for
voice, data, and video communications.

After recelving the report, the commillee contracted
with Inteliant Corporation to conduct a delailed research
of five other states and develop a set of recommenda-
tions for North Dakota for implementing changes o ils
network. The plan presented the foliowing
recommendations:

« Establish a stalewide communications infrastruc-

ture agency for all telecommunicalions planning,
selection, implementation, and management for

all stale agencies, higher education, ai
schools,

Establish the direcior of the agency as
Information Officer for the slate as a cat
position reporting direclly to the Governc
Establish a state communications infr:
board that includes representatives
three branches of government, private e
and local government with the overall
bility lo approve standards and policies
network lechnologles in the state.
Mandale that the agency develop a
plan defining rate plans, missions, goals
fransition plan, business objeclive,
menis, and general procedures.
Establish a group within the agency for
personnel productivity and workflow |
for customers,

Establish a technology development
eslablish the statewide network and t
emerging technologies and implement
shared components for users of the net
Require each enfity that uses the
network or is a user of agency service
strateglc information technology plan,
Establish a project qualily assurance
provide an independent assessment of
of major projects.

Create a division within the agency
administer access to state informatio
through the internet. .

The committee received initial cost
assuming that it would take six years o conve
network. The eslimates contained in the
$6.1 million additional expense during the
biennium; $2.6 milllon additional expense
2001-03 biennium; $3.6 million savings
2003-05 biennium; and $12.5 million savings
2005-07 biennium.

Inteliant also prepared a Statewide Telec
tions Plan Financial Analysis & Fiscal Note,
completed in January 1999. That documen!
that between 1998 and 2005 the stale w
spending for wide area network services for
cies from $19.3 million to $57.6 million.

The committee recommended Senate B
which, as introduced, provided for the estal
an Information Technology Depariment {o
Information Services Division and lo be res
all telecommunications planning, selection,
mentation for all state agencies and
counties, cities, and public elementary anc
schools. The bill provided that the departme
administered by a chief information officer ¢
the Governor. In addition, the bill, as introd
for the creation of an information technc

consisting of four legislators appoinied by th




sounci, seven members appointed by the Gavernor, the
snief Information Officer, the commissioner of higher
ducalion, snd the Supreme Court administrator. The
ard would have been responsible for approving the
siness plan of the depariment, reviewing and
pproving slatewide Informalion technology standards
nd the slatewide Information technology plan,
1ssessing major projects to ensure quslity assurance,
ind reporting to the Governor and the Legislative
sounchh on malters concerning information technology.
[he bill subsianlially imptemented the recommendations
sontained in the Strategic Telecommunications Plan
srepared by Inteliant.

The commillee also recommended Senate Bill
No. 2044, which, as Inlroduced, crealed a Legislative
Councél Information Technotogy Committee. The bill
provided that the commitiee's duties would Inciude
establishing stalewide goals and policy regarding infor-
mation sysiems and {echnology, conducling studies of
information technology efficiency and security, reviewing
activities of the (newly created) Information Technology
Department, and making recommendalions regarding
established or proposed information technology
programs and information technotogy acquisitions.

The commitiee reviewed information regarding the
potential impact of the fallure of computer hardware,
software, and embedded chips due to not being year
2000 compliant. The Information Services Division sent
an impact survey {o 110 state agencies in March 1998 to
increase agency awareness of the potential for
problems. Because most state agencies indicated that
agencies did not have a year 2000 projeci in piace, the
committee contracted with Inteliant to conduct a year
2000 assessment of four state agencies—the Workers
Compensation Bureau, the State Depariment of Healith,
State Radio, and the State Hospital. The assessment
presented by the consultant contained the following
11 recommendations:

* Appoint & state year 2000 director to provide
leadership to ensure Iinvolvement by senior
management in agencies.

* Appoint agency year 2000 directors to ensure
accountability or responsibilily for year 2000
efforts assigned lo a senior management indi-
vidual in each agency.

* Assess ye 2000 readiness across departments
to ensure ti. iYe are no surprises.

» Agencies should formalize their project mapage-
ment, lesting, and contingency plans for their
year 2000 issues.

¢ Conlinue to develop maleriat available on the
stale year 2000 web page fo avoid duplication of
effort and achieve the highest-quality processes.

» Establish public affairs programs 10 increase
public confidence in the state's ability to mitigate
year 2000 issues.

+ Educate and motivate the private sector lo take
steps to prepare for the year 2000.

* Require all vendors providing goods and
services, Including service contract renewals and
equipmont or facility leases, to provide wrilten
assurances that they comply with year 2000
requirements.

* Review contracts to determine which party is
responsible for year 2000 compliance and
include specific assignment of responsibliity in
contracts renewed before January 1, 2000.

+ Estabiish financlal contingencies at the stale and
agency level, based on each sgency's assess-
ment and the overall risk of fallure, and appro-
priate funds to the Emergency Commission fo
distribute as unforeseen emergencies arise due
to year 2000 complications,

* Ensure that legislators are cognizant of the
potential impact of 1999 legislation on an
agency's year 2000 remediation efforts,

1999 Legisiation

The 1999 Legislative Assembly adopted Senate Bill
No. 2044, which established the Information Technology
Committee and set forth its responsibililies as provided
for In NDCC Sections 54-35-15.1, 54-36-15.2, and
64-35-15.3.

The 1909 Legislative Assembly also adopted Senate
Bill No. 2043 (codified as NDCC Chapter 54-69), which
established the Information echnology Department to
replace the information Services Division. The depart-
ment is responsible for all wide area network services
planning, selection, and implementation for all stale
agencies, including institutions under the control of the
State Board of Higher Education, counties, cities, and
school districts, As a result of Senate Bill No. 2043,
wide area network services responsibility for state agen-
cles and institutions became effective July 1, 2000, and
with respect o counties, cities, and school districts, the
biil provides an effective date of August 1, 2001. With
respect to a county, city, or school district, wide area
network services are those services necessary lo
transmit voice, data, or video outside the county, city, or
school district. The department is also responsible for
computer support services, host software development,
statewide communications services, standards for
providing information to olher state agencies and the
public through the Internet, technology planning, process
redesign, and quality assurance.

The Governor is required to appoint the Chief infor-
mation Officer of the state on the basis of education,
experience, and other qualifications in information tech-
nology and administration. The Chief information Officer
is required to administer the depariment.

North Dakota Century Code Section 54-59-05
provides that the department:

1. Shall proviue, supervise, and regulate
information technology of all executive
branch slate entities, excuding the
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inslitutions under the control of the board
of higher educalion,

Shall provide network services in a way
that ensures the network requirements of
a single entity do nol adversely affect the
funclionality of the whole network, facili-
tates open communications with the cili-
zens of the sizle, minimizes the slate's
investment in human resources, accom-
modales an ever-increasing amount of
traffic, supports rapid datection and reso-
lution of problems, protects the nelwork
infrastructure from damage and security
breaches, provides for the aggregation of
dala, voice, video, and multimedia into a
statewkle iransport mechanism or back-
bone, and provides for the network
support for the enlity to carry out its
mission.

May review and approve additional
network services that are not provided by
the department,

May purchase or lease equipment or
replace, including by trade or resals,
equipment as may be necessary lo carry
oul this chapter. Each execulive branch
agency or Institution, except the institu-
tions under the contro! of the board of
higher education, shall submit to the

‘department, in accordance with guidelines

established by the depariment, a wriiten
request for the lease, purchase, or other
contractual acquisition of information tech-
nology. The department shall review
requests for conformance with the
requesting entity's information technology
plan and compliance with statewide poli-
cles and standards. If the reques! is not
in conformance or compliance, the depart-
ment may disapprove the request or
requive justification for the departure from
the plan or statewide policy or standard.
Shall provide information technology,
including assistance and advisory service,
to the executive, legislative, and judicial
branches. If the depariment is unable to
fulfill a request for service from the legisia-
tive or judicial branch, the information
technology may be procured by the legis-
lative or judicial branch within the limits of
legislative appropriations.

May request Information on or review
information  technology,  applications,
system development projecls, and appli-

‘calion development projects of execulive

branch agencies.

7.

106

North Dakola Century Code Section 54-59-0¢
requires the depariment lo develop and maintain a busi:

Shall study emerging lechnology and
evaluale ils impact on the stale's system
of informalion technology.

Shall develop guidelines for reporis to be
provided by each executive branch
agency, instilution, or department, the
institutions under the control of the board
of higher education, and agencles of the
judicial and legisiative branches on infor-
mation technology In those entities.

Shall review the information technology
management of executive branch agen-
cles or institutions, including institutions
under the conlrol of the board of higher
education as provided In section
54-59-13,

Shalt perform all other duties necessary to
carry nut this chapter,

ness plan that must;

1.
2,

Define the department's overall organiza-
tion, mission, and delivery of services.
Define the sirategies for Improving
personnel productivity and workflow proc-
esses of the department.

Delermine how use of the statewide
network will improve learning in the state.
Determine how the statewide networks
can provide network services for the
benefit of Indian tribes, nonprofit organiza-
tions, and noncommercial public television
stations licensed by the federal communi-
cations commission to operate in this
state,

Determine the specific strategles and
processes to ensure that agencles share
information, syslerns, and the stalewide
network.

Define the processes that will ensure that
counties, cities, and school districts
recelve maximum benefit of the statewide
network.

Define a fair and equitable billing structure
that provides for payback of the Initial
investments and ongoing operations  of
the statewide network,

Address the processes that will be put in
place to ensure that the department exer-
cises Its powers and duties with minimal
delay, cost, and procedural burden o an
entity receiving services from the depart-
menl; to ensure that the department
provides prompt, high-quality services fo
an enlity recelving services from the
deparimeni; lo ensure that an entity
receiving services from the department is
aware of the technology available and to




ensure training on s use; and to fosier
informalion technology innovation by state
entitios,

Ad¢iress the deployment of encryption and
the adiministration of digital signatures.

10. Address informalion and syslem backup

and disaster recovery.

North Dakota Century Code Section 54-69-07 estab-
ishes a Statewide Wide Area Network Advisory
sornmittee consisting of the Chief Information Officer or
ha officer's designee, the stale courl administrator or
he administrator's designee, the commissioner of higher
sducation or the commissioner's designee, and nine
nembers appointed by the Governor, Of the nine
nembers appointed by the Governor, two must repre-
en| state agencies, one must represent a county, one
nust represent a city, two must represent elementary
and secondary education, one must represent noncom-
nercial public television stations licensed by the Federal
communications Commission to operate in this state,
nd two must represent privale industry and be knowl-
sdgeable in the deployment of major technology
ojects.

Each agency or institution is required to appoint an
nformation technology coordinator {0 maintain fiaison
with the Information Technology Department and assist
he departiment in areas related to making the most
sconomicat use of information technology.

The depurtment is required to cooperate with each

le entity providing access to any computer data base
x electronically filed or stored Iinformation to assist in
oviding economical, efficient, and compatible access.
e Chief information Officer is required to conduct
sonferences and meetings with political subdivisions to
‘aview and coordinate information technology.

Under NDCC Section 54-59-13, the depariment is
'equired to review the information technology manage-
nent of executive branch state agencies and institutions,
ncluding the institutions under the control of the State
Joard of Higher Education, to avaluate the entity’s plan-
ing effectiveness, conforniance to its information tech-
ology plan, compliance with slatewide policies and
standards, asset quality, and training methods. The
jlepartment is also required to conduct an analysis of an
ality’s contract management system and each contrac-
or's compliance with contract provisions with respect to
iy entity that contracts for information technology
lervices,

The 56th Legislative Assembly also adopted House
3ill No. 1037 (codified as NDCC Sections 32-12-05 and
14-04-23 and subdivision e of subsection 3 of Seclion
32-12.1-03), which was recommended by the interim
nformation Technology Committee. The legislation
imited state and political subdivision liability for failure to
Lyecome year 2000 compliant.  Section 32-12-05
) yrovides that the state may not be liable for a contract or

v orl claim resulting from fallure of software, a telecommu-

wicalions network, or a device conlaining a computer

processor lo Inlerprel, produce, calculate, generale, or
sccount for @ dale that is compalible with the year 2000
date change if the stale has made a good-faith effort to
make the compuler software, telecommunications
nelwork, or device containing 8 compuler processor
compllant with the year 2000 date change. Section
32-12.1-03 a'so includes similar immunity for political
subdivisions with respect to a lorl claim. House Bili
No. 1037 was amended by the Legislative Assembly to
enact Seclion 44-04-23, which provides an exceplion {0
open records requirements for year 2000 processing
information gathered by a public entity which relates fo
computer hardware or software, telecommunications
networks, or devices containing a computer processor,

STATEWIDE NETWORK

North Dakota Century Code Section 54-56-08
requires each state agency and institution that desires
access lo wide area network services and each county,
city, and school district o obtain those services from the
Information Technology Depariment. The Chief Informa-
tion Officer Is authorized 1o exemp! a city, county, or
school district from that requirement if s currenl wide
area network services are more cost-effective for or
more appropriate for specific needs of that entity than
wide area network services avallable from the depert-
ment. The depariment is required to provide network
services In a way that ensures the network requirements
of a single entity do not adversely affect the functionality
of the whole network, facllitates open communications
with the citizens of the state, minimizes the state's
investment in human resources, accommodates an ever-
increasing amount of trafflc, supports rapid detection and
resolution of problems, protecis the network infrastruc-
ture from damage and security breaches, provides for
the aggregation of data, voice, video, and multimedia
into a statewide transport mechanism or backbone, and
nrovides for the network support for the entity to carry
out its mission,

in 1984 the Higher Education Computer Network was
integrated into the statewide network, which was initiated
in 1982, and the North Dakota Information Network was
created to jointly manage the network. North Dakota
was the first state with combined state government and
higher education networks. In 1985 the network was
extended to all counties to provide connectivity between
county social service boards and the Department of
Human Services.

in 1891 the network's backbone was converied to
digital facilities, and the Interactive Video Network was
implemented on these new digital facilities. In 1992 the
North Dakota Information Network selected AT&T's Soft-
ware Defined Network (SDN) long-distance voice serv-
ices, and North Dakota became an earlier adopler of
vitual private network technology. In 1994 the North
Dakota Information Network commitied as the anchor
tenant for U S Wes! (now known as Qwest) to establish
a statewide frame-relay network, Also, in 1994 the North




‘o‘a Information Network provided Internel accecs
the slate network, and Northwesl Network was
selected as the Internel provider.

In 1996 all buildings on the Capitol grounds with the
exception of the Governor's residence were connecled
with fiber optics cable; and in 1897 state government
enlored a parinership with Montana-Dakota Ulllities
Company for fiber optics cable conneclion of 10 slale
government bulldings in Bismarck to the Capitol, In
1998 the slate moved its cross-LATA connections o
Dakota Carrier Network,

In late 1999 and early 2000, the Chief Information
Officer held meelings with representatives of Dakola
Corrier Nelwork and Qweust regarding a negotiated
coniract for a new slalewide network. However, Dakota
Carrier Network withdrew from the negotiations because
its representativas indicated they were unable lo discern
any benefits of a joint proposal with Qwest,

On March 27, 2000, the Information Technology
Department issued a request for proposals for a new
statewide network, The coniract proposal was divided
info four components, and the department received
12 responses 1o the four componenis. The depariment
established three evaluation leams to review the
proposals-one team from the department, one team

higher education, and one team from elementary
secondary education.
Sprint was determined to be the best bidder with

respect to the Internet access component with a price of
$13,900 for 45 megabit service. The bid price was
approximately 50 percent lower than the prices being
paid by the department. Norstan was delermined to be
the best bidder with respect to the video bridging compo-
nent. However, because it was determined the bidders
did not fully understand the requirements of the request,
the depariment delayed awarding the video portion of
the bid. In addition, the evaluation teams recommended
that the department negotiate a contract with General
Datacom for MPEG2 video equipment. With respect to
the customer premises equipment portion of the
proposal, Corporate Technologles submitied the best bid
for wide area network and local area network and IP
telephony equipment. Corporate Technologies offered a
36 percent price discount on Cisco hardware and soft-
ware, a 29 percenl discount on Cisco Smartnet mainte-
nance, a 35 percent discount on most Nortel equipment,
and a 34 percent discount on Paradyne and other Nortel
equipment. With respect to the transport component of
the proposal, Dakota Carrier Nelwork submitled the best
bid for network transport and access. Dakota Carrier
" Network was determined to be the best bidder due to its
network design, the potential for local jobs, and a signifi-
- cantly lower cost. The backbone of the network consisls
of eight ATMs and 31 additional ATM switches with a
network operations center located in Bismarck.
When the new statewide network is fully
implemented, thece will be 552 physical conneclions to
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he network. Phase 1 of the network rollout includes

conneclions 1o 218 locations In 64 communities. The
depariment's goal Is to have 177 localions converied 10
the now notwork by December 1, 2000. As of
November 3, 2000, 152 locations had been converted.
In addition, fiber optics connections had been installed to
all 11 college and university campuses by November 3,
2000. Although funds were notl specifically appropriated
by the 56th Legislalive Assembly for implemenlation of
tha new statewide network, funds from exisling budgets
were used to cover approximately $3 million in equip-
ment and circult costs during the 1999-2001 biennium.

The department presented Ils proposed budget fo
Phase 2 of the notwork rollout during the 2001-03 blen
nium.  The network rollout budget includes ove
$17 millon to bulld a telecommunications Infrastructure
and support for the network. Most of the funds will b
used o connect 1o high schools and libraries In the statt
and provido training and suppor! for those users, Thi
$17 million pioposed budget does not includ:
$3.7 million In reimbursement as a result of the {odere
e-rate credit, Under the proposal, the state will cover th
cost of basic T-1 connectivity and one-lime and recurrin
costs of $4,260,765. Dakota Carrier Network |
purchasing the routers and including the cost in th
circuit cost so that the e-rate reimbursement may b
maximized. The proposed budgel includes funds for th
following entities and uses:

$594,00(
§120,00¢
$6,000,00(

Center for Innovation in Instruclion
Educational Telecommunications Council

Elemenlary and secondary educalion equipment -
Video and local area networks

interactive Video Network - Statewide video support
SENDIT technology services

ExplorNet

North Dakota Association of Counties $248,00
Higher educalion (work force education) $1,856,28
CPE - Elementary and secondary educationfibraries -| $3,340,00
One-time expendilure
Rmurrln&wsts

Service rates charged by the depariment for t
2001-03 biennium will increase with respect to progra
ming and systems analysis services while central pr¢
essing unit (CPU) rates and disk slorage rales ¢
expected to decrease. In addition, with the convers
o the new slalewide network, device connection &
circuit connection rates will increase.

The Slatewide Wide Area Nelwork Advis
Commitlee provided for under NDCC Section 54-59
was eslablished to advise the department with respec
planning and implementation of network servis
provided by the deparlment. Now that the slatew
network is being implemented, the need for the advis
committee appears {0 be obviated. In response b
request from the committee, the Governor appointe
network implementation and utilization task force
address telecommunications infrastruc

$2,739,1%
$1,427,00
$590,30

$4,260,7¢€
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smentation snd support, public policy issues, infor-
on technology work force development and iraining
s, andd economic development initiatives. Because

. o Is likely to be a continuing need for a group lo

the depariment with respect (o siatewide informa-
technology planning concerning electronic govern-
W services, technology Infrastructure fo suppor
nomic developmenl and work force training, and
o statewide Information technology Initiatives and
<y, there was inlerest In establishing a new advisory
nmiltee lo consull with the depariment on those

Jes.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT PROPOSED
2001-03 BUDGET

The budget request for the Information Technology
partiment  for the 1999-2001 blennium was
19,659,205, $260,000 of which was from the general
nd. In September 2000, the Emergency Commission
sproved an additional $6,562,800 in spending authority
+ the depariment to be used for a Job Service North
akola project, contract programming services, and
perating and equipment expenses for the wide area
etwork. Thus, the lotal budget for the blennium is
66,222,095,

In its 2001-03 budgel request, the department is
equesting an Increase from the 1898-2001 biennium.
‘he proposed budget will include an additional

.331.048.098 in special funds, much of which would be
jedicated to the Depariment of Human Services' Health
nsurance Portability and Accountability Act project,
{owever, as discussed under MAJOR INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY REPORTS, that project may be reduced
in scope, which would result In a reduced special fund
appropriation {o the department. The proposed budget
also includes an additional $8,198,5643 in general funds.
Thus, the total budget request will be $985,466,736,
which is an increase of $39,244,641 over the 1999-2001
bilennium. The proposed budget for the department
includes 60 new full-ime employee positions and
77 new contract programmers. In addition, the proposed
budget includes $1 miflion for an innovation fund. The
proposed innovation fund would be used to provide
funds for any state agency that may develop a new
project for which it did not request funding. The Chief
Information Officer indicated that the detalis of the appli-
cation and approval process for the innovation fund have
not been fully developed.

FINANCING OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY PROJECTS
The Chief Information Officer reported that the
Attorney General informed the Information Technology
Department that state law did not specifically authorize
the department to finance the cost of acquiring equip-
ment or software. Therefore, the depariment could not

continue 10 acquie equipment by financing the
purchase. Because of the need of the depariment 0
have the ability to finance large purchases, the Chief
Information Officer requested the commitiee to consider
a bill draft to authorize the depariment to finance the
purchase of equipmant and software.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES

In implementing the goals of the Information Tech-
nology Depariment's business plan and the statewide
information technology plan, the department reviewed
several of the department’s initialives.

E-Government

E-commerce is the use of internetworked computers
fo create and transform business relationships,
E-commerce applications are designed to provide busi-
ness solutions to improve the quality of goods and serv-
ices, increase the speed of service delivery, and reduce
the cost of business operations. The informalion Tech-
nology Department developed a new statewide portal to
provide a user-friendly access to state government, one-
stop shopping for government information and services,
and an enlerprise approach to maximize efficiencies. To
address the stale's e-commerce needs, the department
purchased hardware and software, frained staff,
provided marketing assistance to agencies, and created
a special team to work on e-commaerce projects.

Despite the progress in implementing e-gcvernment
initiatives such as on-line game and fish licenting, there
are challenges to be faced in the implement:tion proc-
ess. Before e-government can be successful, citizens
must trust the security and privacy of the systems, In
general, if information is being collecled from
consumers, consumers should be told the information is
being collected and for what purpose. In addition,
consumers should be given the choice {o decline lo
allow collected information to be used for certain
purposes, Consumers should also be given access to
personal information to verify its accuracy. Finally,
measures must be in place to secure information from
unauthorized use. The adoption of the Uniform Elec-
tronic Transactions Act, which was recommended to the
interim Judiciary Commitiee by the North Dakota
Commission on Uniform State Laws, is an essential
‘element to furthering the progress of e-government in
the state.

The department has included $481,842 in its
proposed 2001-03 budget to address e-government.
The Chief Information Officer indicated that the
e-government Initiatives will be implemented in three
phases. The first phase, which will be implemented
through 2002, involves moving a small amount of low-
risk, clearly bound, constituent-focused services on-line.
The second phase, between 2002 and 2005, will inte-
grale different bureaucratic depariments. During the
third phase, beginning in 2005, there will likely be legis-
lative mandates to drive the organizationa! reinvention
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ary lo synchronize government processes and
lon with Internet front-ends.

Enterprise Resource Planning

The higher education sysiem has used ils adminisira-
live mainframe sysiem, which supporis student informa-
tion and financial systems, for approximately 26 years.
Because the technology is becoming outdated and the
software being used by many of the larger schoo
districts in the stais will no longer be supported, a new
integrated system is envisioned 10 address the needs of
the instilutions of higher education, students, the State
Board of Higher Education, and other users, e.g.,
elemeniary and secondary education. A new inlegraled
sysiem will integrate student, financial, and human
resource systems serving higher educalion, state
government, and elementary and secondary education.
Along with the new statewlde network rollout, the enter-
prise resource planning initiative of the information Tech-
nology Depariment is 1o allow e-purchasing, employce
accass, public access, and agency operation to provide
improved financial informalion. The State Board of
Higher Education has Indicaled that the board's 2001-03
budget request will contain a request for funds to begin
replacement of the administrative system. Because the
imated cost of the project Is approximately
& milllon, the Chief Information Officer has proposed
{ the project be financed through the issuance of
bonds. The proposed 2001-03 budget request of the
department coitains $469,931 for enterprise resource

planning.

Geographic Information Systems

Several slate agencies have been using geographic
information systems for several years, and the needs of
state agencies for additional applications are increasing.
The Governor established a geographic information
systems lechnical commitliee fo organize geographic
information systems activities of the varlous agencies of
state government, In 1998 the commitiee requested the
Informalion Services Division to fund a study of
geographic information systems activities and o prepare
a plan for the future of geographic information systems
in the state. Because that study was not funded, the
committee requested the Information Technology
Depariment in 2000 to fund a study. The depariment
contracled with a consultant to conduct a study and
prepare a plan, The major finding of the study was that
geographic information systems data is difficult lo share
because of the lack of a central depository. After
_receiving comments from the varlous agencles using
| aphic information systems, the depariment
oposed the creation of a centralized hub within the
> department. The proposed 2001.03 budget request of
- the depariment includes $1,059,317 {o support the
~establishment of a geographic information syslems hub.

Electronic Document Management Systems

Eleclronic documenl managemen! systems are @
collection of enabling technologles, the common compo-
nents of which include document management, imaging,
electronic forms, workflow, and data slores. The
purpose of such systems is o Increase the efficiency of
information creation, caplure, siorage, and retrieval; to
provide a common interface for storing and accessing
information; to provide increased security of sensitive
and confidential information; and to support decision-
making by providing access to up-to-date information.

The Secretary of Stale and the Workers Compensa-
fion Buresu have established electronic document
management sysiems. In addition, 21 agencies included
plans for implementing electronic document manage-
ment systems lechnology in thelr 1998 information tech-
nology plans, Although agencies with large sysiems In
place will continue to use those syslems, the Information
Technology Department will attempt to build a system
with the flexibility necessary to meet the needs of most
agencles. As a resull, participaling apencies will have
the ability to share information. The proposed 2001-03
budget request of the department includes $1,309,317 in
special funds to address electronic document manage-
ment sysfems needs.

Information Technology Purchasing

The Information Technology Depariment reportec
that it had implemented purchasing initiatives througt
which slale agencies may purchase producls at lowet
prices, The depariment ertered an agreement witl
Oracle Corporation through which agencies will recelve
a volume discount that may amount to 50 percent
Although the Atlorney General advised the departmen
that parlicipation in the Western States Contracting Alli
ance was not authorized by state law, representalives o
the depariment indicated that the department wi
propose legislation to allow the stale fo enter th
alfiance. The depariment is also cooperating with th:
State Board of Higher Education to address telephon

long-distance purchasing.

Information Technology Grants

The Information Technology Depariment has m
engaged in the aclive pursult of grants. Howeve
because numerous grant sources are available, th
department reported it will actively seek grants |
supplement or replace general funds. To initiate th
process, the department has indicated that an employe
may be assigned to idenlify priorities, develop plans, ar
identify grant sources.

Criminal Justice Systems
The Information Technology Department has esta
lished a goal to create a sirategic plan by March 2001
infegrate criminal justice information systems. Integr:
tion of criminal justice systems will provide efficient




sonefits through the use of graphical Interfaces and
-entralized dala reposilories; easy and secure access {0
selecled judicial information via electronic means; and

o informed decisionmaking due to accessibilily of

slice-relaled information. To begin the sludy process,
@ grant of $256,060 has been secured from the National
Governor's Assoclalion (o pay travel expenses to meel-
ings and workshops. In addition, a second potential
grani source may have been idenlified as a source of
funding for the planning phase. To be successful, the
process will atlempt to include parlicipation from stale,

county, and city officials,

information Technology Personnel
Recruitment and Retention

Because of the high demand for and a national
shortage of skilled information technology employees,
the Information Technology Depariment and other state
agencies are faced with problems In recruiting those
employees. Although the department has experienced a
relatively low rate of turnover, the Depariment of Trans-
portation and the Depariment of Human Services have
not been as fortunate,

The Information Technology Depariment contracted
with a consultant 1o survey its employees and contrac-
fors lo delermine how to best prepare for the future,
identify (raining and developmental needs, gather infor-
mation on organizational effectiveness and key manage-
ment subject areas, sirenglhen the depariment's stra-
fegic business and planning processes, and identify
actions that will allow the department to be more
successful. The resulls of the survey indicated that the
strengths of the department are a strong personal salis-
faction and pride among ils employees; clear and
reasonable expeclations linked to the depariment's
mission and goals, a strong customer focus; and respon-
sible employees with initiative. The survey indicated that
weaknesses (0 be addressed related to performance
and work unit measures, organizational and interper-
sonal communications, empowerment of employees,
recognition and compensation, and work and job design.

Subsequent to the turvey, actions were taken to
address the findings of the survey, including imple-
menling flexible work arrangements and additional solicl-
tation of employee comment. In addition, the
department conducted a compensation study o compare
its salaries with the private sector and contracted for an
organizational study to restructure the department and
improve s services and efficiency, The department
also is cooperating with the Central Personnei Division,
the Depariment of Human Services, Job Service North
Dakota, and the Department of Transportation to form a
committee lo address rocruiting and relention issues.

. Short-term solutions identified to address the shortage of

- skilled employees include revising minimum qualification
" requirements, streamiining job classes to provide for

" additional flexibility, and revising and emphasizing new

© recruiting  efforts,

Longer-lerm  solutions  include

performance recognition and an increased focus on all
aspects of employee job satisfaction.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

DEPARTMENT BUSINESS PLAN

North Dakata Century Code Section 54.59-06
requires the Information Technology Department to
develop and maintain a business plan. Pursuant lo that
directive, Ihe depariment prepared a plan that identified
the following four generat components that form the
nucleus of the slatewide vision for information
technology:

1. State government should be customer-focused.

2. State government should be efficient,

3. State government should be well-managed.

4. State government should provide the leadership
for developing a shared infrastructure.

The plan also identified the following critical issues
the depariment must address lo transition itself for a
successful future:

1. Promote and coordinate the evaluation, inlegra-
tion, and application of current and emerging
information technologies  within  state
government.

Enhance and manage an effective integrated
communications network infrastructure capable
of supporting the stalewide vision for informa-
tion technology.

Promole, coordinate, and assist state agencies
in moving government on-fine.

improve services to agencies by developing
closer relationships {0 betier understand their
business needs,

Foster the communiications of information tech-
nology activity by becoming the communication
"catalyst" within state government.

Create technology standards and best practices
fo ensure accountability and interoperability
among governmental entities in support of the
statewide vision for information technology.
Utilize the department’s information technology
resources and investmenis effectively and
efficiently.

Continue to enhance the agency information
technology planning process to meet the needs
of the various stakeholders.

9. Recruit, develop, and retain skilled information
technology workers.

In response to the critical issues and vision threads
identified by the department, the departmenl developed
the following four strategic goals:

1. Align information technology wilh customers'
businesses to better understand customer busi-
ness requirements and raise awareness of
technologies available to provide products and
services that will assist them in accomplishing
their goals and objectives.




2. Provide statewide direction and leadership to
provide siralegic Information technology direc-
tion for government and education in the slate
and influence the deployment of informalion
technology throughout the slate.

Provide value to the depariment's customers to
continually strive to improve the quality and
timeliness of the depariment's services while
maintaining competitive rates.

Maintain human resources lo achleve an effi-
clent, motivated, and educated work force with
knowledge, skills, and ability to meet the depari-
ment's current and future challenges.

In the business plan, the depariment idenlified the
following four principles and philosophles under which it
operates.

1. The deparimeni has an obligation to balance
the individual needs of agencles with the best
intares! of the state as a whole.

2. The department is an extenslon of the agencies'
information technologies and is commiited to
being proacive Iin an effort to assist its
customers in using the avallable technologies to
effeclively and efficienlly accomplish their goals
and objectives,

The department Is committed to dealing openly
and honestly wilh its customers and continually
improving the quality, price, and timeliness of its
services,

The department Is in the business of providing
knowledge to its customers and is commitied o
developing and maintaining a level of expertise
through education, acquiring the proper tool sef,
and focusing on its custfomers’ needs.

The depariment also adopted a misslon stalement
that states the department is to “provide leadership and
knowledge to assist our customers in achieving their
mission {hrough the Innovative use of Information
technology.”

Although the business plan is complete, it is viewed
as a “living” document that is subject {o change based
upon changing expectations and changes in technology.
As technology changes and the information technology
needs of stale agencies change, changes will be needed
_in the business pian. In addition, after the transition from
the Information Services Division to the Information
Technology Depariment and the implementation of the
new statewide network, the statutory requirements
regarding the conlents of the business plan may require

revision,

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

A POLICIES, STANDARDS, AND GUIDELINES
. North Dakota Century Code Section 54-59-09
requires the Information Technology Depariment to

S develop slatewide information technology policies, stan-

- derds, and guidelines based upon information received

from state agencies and insiiulions. Except with respeci
fo academic and research uses of information fech.
nology at the inslitulions under the conirol of the State
Board of Higher Education, each execulive branch state
agency and inslitution is required to comply with the poli-
cles and slandards developed by the department,

The department has adopled standards and policles
in a variety of areas and continues to update and adopt
hew siandards and policies as necessary. Policies and
slandards adopted or under consideration include
contract guidelines for information lechnology projects,
policies for e-business security, and geographic infurma-
tion systems standards. The department held several
slandards and policies review group meelings with
representatives of slate agencles 1o discuss the adoption
of standards and policles,

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PLANS

North Dakota Cenlury Code Seclion 54-59-11
requires every executive branch agency to prepare ar
information technology plan, subject to approval by the
depariment. The plan must be submitied to the depart
ment by January 15 of each even-numbered year. The
plan must be prepared based on guk.ulines developec
by the department; must provide the information tech
nology goals, objectives, and activities of the entity fo
the current blennium and the next two bienniums; am
mus! include a list of information technology asset:
owned, leased, or employed by the entity. Each entit:
required to file a plan must provide interim updates to it
plan # major information technology changes occu
which affect its plan. The depariment is required
review each enlily's plen for compliance with statewid:
Information technology policies and standards, and th
department may require an eniity to change its plan t
comply with statewide policies or standards or {0 resolv:
conflicting directions among plans. Agencies of the judi
clal and legislative branches are required to file the
information technology plans with the depariment b
January 15 of each even-numbered year,

The Information Technology Dupartment prepare
guldelines to be used by state agencies in preparing th
plans required by NDCC Section 54-569-11, The guid¢
lines were developed to ensure that the plans submitte
by agencies are useful for the agencies and provid
information necessary for the budget process for th
agency and the Office of Management and Budget., Tt
guldelines were also designed to require agencies !
provide information standards compiiance information.

Although representatives of various sfate agencie
expressed concerns regarding the value of the plans ar
amount of work required to prepare the plans, there we!
assurances from the department that agencies would t
given the flexibility needed to make the plans a doc!
meit that will prove to be a valuable resource for tt
agencies. Agency represenialives also indicated th
changing the deadline for submission of the plans fro




" snuary 15 lo March 15 would assist the agencies in the

- udgeting process
Reptesmtaﬂves of the depariment teslified that there
3 some confusich regarding whether information
ubmitted to the department in the information tech-
iology planhing process is open fo the public. The Chief
nformation Officer stalzd that representatives of the
nformation Technology Depariment would like the flexi-
dlity to release records that are obviously not consid-
wed confidential or to refer open records requests to the
‘sgency that submitted the information to the depariment,

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT COORDINATION

OF SERVICES

North Dakota Century Code Section 54-59-12
-equires the Chief Information Officer and the commis-
sloner of the State Board of Higher Education to meet at
east twice each year to plan and coordinate their infor-
mation technology. The Chief Information Officer and
commissioner aret required to consider areas in which
joint or coordinated information technology may result in
more «fficient and effective state government operations.
Upon raquest, the Chief Information Officer is required to
report to the Legisiative Council or its designated
committee regarding the coordination of services with
political subdivisions, and the Chief Information Officer
and commissioner are required to report to the Legisla-
tive Council or its designated commitiee regarding their
findings and recommendations,

The Chief information Officer and reprasentatives of
the State Board of Higher Education cooperated in
developing the request for proposals for the new state-
wide network and in reviewing the proposals. In
addition, the department and representatives of the Slate
Board of Higher Education worked closely In addressing
proposals for student information systems, financial
systems, and human resource systems, Representa-
tives of the two entities also serve together on a number
of commitiees set up by each entity.

The Chief Information Officer and representatives of
the department participated in several meelings spon-
sored by the North Dakola League of Cities and the
North Dakota Association of Counties to provide infor-
mation regarding the rollout of the new statewide
network, In addition, counties and the department coop-
eraled to provide information technology services in

several areas,

MAJOR INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY REPORTS
The committee is authorized o review any informa-
tion technology project or information technology plan. If
the commitiee delermines that a project or plan is al risk
of falling to achieve its intended resulls, the committee
‘may recommend to the Office of Managemenl and
- Budget the suspension of the expenditure of moneys

appropriated for the project or plan. In addition, the
committee is directed o review the cost-benefit analysis
of any major information technulogy project of an execu-
tive or judicial branch agency. A major project is a
project with a cost of $250,000 or more in one biennium
or a tolal cost of $500,000 or more.

The committee reviewed the quarterly lisls of major
projects compiled by the Information Technology Depant-
ment as well as cost-benefit analyses of proposed major
projects. The commiliee did not recommend the
suspension of any project. However, the committee did
express concern with respect to the vehicle registration
and titling system project underiaken by the Department
of Transportation, Although the project was significantly
behind schedule, the major vendor for the project was
required by the project contract to pay liquidated
damages to the department for costs incurred by the
depariment as a result of the delays. The Information
Technology Depariment conducted an audit of the
project and assisted in establishing a revised project
schedule. Although the projecl was not fully imple-
mented as of November 6, 2000, the first phase of the
impiementation process began on Oclober 14, 2000, as
provided for in the revised schedule.

Representatives of the Department of Transportation
testified that the implementation process was
progressing well as of November 6, 2000.

Representatives of the Information Technology
Depariment and the Stale Board of Higher Education
expressed concern that the cost-benefit analysis require-
ment did not exempt higher education institutions with
respect to academic and research projects. Requiring a
cosl-benefit analysis for those types of projects would
place a substantial burden on the depariment and be of
little value because many of those projects do not
involve slate funds. It was suggested that NDCC
Section 54-35-15.2 be amended to limit the cosl-benefit
analysis requirements to only projects that significantly
impact the slalewida wide area network or the statewide
library system or are administralive projects.

The commitiee also received reports regarding major
projects proposed for the next biennium. Of particular
interast to the commitiee was the project required by the
federal Health Insurance Porlability and Accountability
Act. Although the project was originally expected lo cost
approximately $25 miilion, it is now anticipated that due
lo revisions in the scope of the project, the potential cost
of the project may be $8.9 miliion.

REPORTS OF NONCONFORMANCE

North Dakota Century Code Section 54.59-13
requires the Information Technology Department to
report to the Legislative Council if the department finds
that an executive branch agency or institution does not
agree to conform to ils information technology plan or
comply with statewide policies and standards. Although
the depariment reported that not all agencies had been
diligent in preparing agency information technology




Man . all agencies ‘umma!dv submitted the plans as
quired.

YEAR 2000 PREPARATION AND

REMEDIATION STATUS REPORTS

Because of concerns with the difficulty of computer
processors in recognizing the year 2000, the commitiee
requested reguiar updates from the Information Tech-
nology Department regarding the slatus of stale agen-
cles in addressing potentin) year 2000 problems. As part
of the year 2000 education process, the depariment
cooperated with the Department of Transportation to
distribute at least 350,000 informational brochures with
molor vehicle license and registration renewals. The
Information Technology Department also held monthly
meetings with state agencles and regular meetings with
representatives of cities, counties, and school districts.
The department posted all state agency year 2000
progress reporis on its web page.

Although many agencles were unable 1o begin year
2000 remediation efforts uniil the beginning of the new
blennlum, every agency completed s efforls before

January 1, 2000. Despite investing less than most

states in the nation on remediation efforts ($25 million)

state government experlenced very few year 2000 prob-

s. Of the problems reported, most were minor and

uirod an average resolution time of 15 minutes or

less. According to those involved in the year 2000 reme-

diation processes, the invesimenis in remediation were
crucial to the fact that few problems occurred.

CONSULTANT STUDIES
The Legislative Councll contracted with the Infeliant
Corporation and Nexus Innovations, Inc., (the Bismarck
" tranch of Intellant was purchased by the Bismarck inte-
liant employees and assumed the Nexus name) lo
conduct studies to assist the committee In s

deliberations.

i Telecommunications Study

The telecommunications study focused on elemen-
o tary and secondary education, telecommunications fund-
v ing, economic development, and fiscal measures. In
conducling the study, representatives of Inteliant gath-
‘ ered information from the states of South Dakola and
oo Wyoming, education groups, and economic development
professionals,

The study of olher states demonstraied that training
is vital to the effective utilization of the stalewide
: network, To provide that training, a substantial financial
B'}; invesiment will be needed. However, education officials

. expressed great concern regarding the Issue of slate
W' funding being available to school dislricls so that schools

- wil have access (0 essential network services,
The sludy concluded that telecommunications
spenuing by the state vill increase, but efficiencies will
be geined through the implementation of the new

stalewide information network. Grants will be essenti:
to obtain funds to assist in the implementation of tr
network. In addition to grant funds, the study conclude
that a significant state investment by the Legislativ
Assembly will be needed.

The sludy found that because broadband access
essential to successful economic development effort
the statewide nelwork will be a vital asset to econom
development at the local level. Additional technolog
factors that affect economic development are
technology-literate work force, cooperation with high
education and research institutions, and access
venture capital.

As a result of the study, Inteliant recommended th
schoots must be included in the statewide network. Int
liant also recommended that an entity be established
provide leadership for educational development in i
utlfization of technology. Inteliant recommended th
training and programmatic areas be emphasized ai
that the state aggressively pursue oulside fundii
sources in a cohesive, multiagency approach.

E-Rate Study

The federal government established the e-rz
program in 1988. Under the program, funds are avi
able for elementary and secondary schools and librari
to provide. financial assistance for telecommunicatio
sarvices, Internet access, and internal connections, T
study concluded that to capltalize on the maximt
e-rate reimbursement, it is vital that the state determi
the most advantageous manner for strucituring contras
with vendors in the implementation of the statewi
network. To maximize the e-rate reimbursement, In
llant recommended the statewide network contr
should be struclured so that the vendor purchas
equipment such as routers and includes the cost
circuit costs,

Education Funding Study

The funding of network services and video servic
for elementary and secondary education and the apt
priate organizational structure for elementary and sec:
dary education network operations was also studi
The study found that bandwidth demand by schools |
been rising dramstically, and the cost of T-1 service |
been cost-prohibitive for many school districts. 1
study also found that school officials conlinue lo expr:
concerns regarding potentlal actions by the Legisla’
Assembly with respect to the provisin of netw
services,

Nexus surveyed school districts regarding the cos
frame relay T-1 service and found that the average ¢
is $6,467 per year, However, annual costs are as |
as $29,000 per year for some school districts, The ¢
mated cost under the new siatewide network
ATM T-1 service is $6,048 per year. The sl
concluded that the biggest winners under the 1



network will be the smaliest schools, which

are the highest-cost customers.
Nexus study found that school districts desire
or distance learning capabilities, in part due to

' shortages. Exisling interactive video consor-

have proven to be valuable sources of information
the state makes decisions regarding the implementa-
of the video component of the new statewide
. The study found that there is not a unified
elementary and secondary education with
{o technology issues. Therefore, by restruc-
the Educational Telecommunications Council and
ing representatives from SENDIT Technolog:
Services, the Center for Innovation In Instruction, the
Division of Independent Study, and various educational
groups, and allowing the restructured councl to hire a
technology director, a coordinated approach could be
laken to address school technology needs. Nexus
recommended that the state provide a general fund
appropriation to provide for a T-1 connection 1o each
igh school. The estimated one-time cost of each
connection is $11,000, The recommendation suggests
that elementary schools that are not connected physi-
cally to a high school be connected to the network during
the next blennium. Nexus recommended that the Legis-
lative Assembly continue the current level of funding for
the Educational Telecommunications Council to allow
investment in Interactive video. Nexus also recom-
mended changing the structure of the Educational Tele-
communications Council and authorizing the restruc.
tured councl to set prioritles for Interactive video
investment.

Because the Nexus report was presented at the last
meeling of the committee before the Legislative Council
meeting, the commitlee was unable to consider a bitl
draft implementing the recommendations of the Nexus
study. However, because the committee Is a statutorily
created commitiee, the chairman of the commitiee
requested the Legislative Council staff to prepare a bill
draft that would restructure the Educational Telecommu-
nicstions Councl and place the new enlity under the
budget authority of the information Technology Depart-
ment. The chairman indicated that the committee would
meet acain before the convening of the 57th Legislative
Assembiy to consider the proposed bill draft,

COMMITTEE CONSIDERATIONS

The committee considered a bill draft that would have
changed the deadline for agencles submitting Informa-
tion technology plans from January 15 to March 15 of
each even-numbered year,

The committee considered a bill draft that would have
exempted from the major project cost-benefit analysis
requirement. academic and research projects of inslitu-

- . tions of higher education.

The committee considered a bill draft that consol-
dated the two bill drafts discussed above with other
proposed amendments to NDCC Chapter 54-59 which
were suggesied by the Chief Information Officer. The
bill draft required the Information Technology Committee
to review the cost-benefit analysis of any major project of
the State Board of Higher Education or any Institution
under the control of the board if the project significantly
impacts the statewide wide area network, impacts the
statewide library system, or is an administrative project.
The bill draft authorized the Information Technology
Depariment to purchase equipment and software
through financing arrangements, The bill draft aso
specified additional requirements that must be included
in the Information Technology Depariment's business
plan. The bill draft replaced the Statewide Wide Area
Network Advisory Committee with a State Information
Technology Advisory Committee that will be responsible
for advising the Information Technology Department
regarding statewide information technology planning,
including providing electronic government services for
citizens and businesses, developing technology infra-
structure to support economic development and
force training, and developing other statewide informa-
tion technology initiativas and policy. The bill draft also
changed the deadiine for agencies submitting informa-
tion technology plans from January 15 to March 16 of
each even-numbered year. The bill draft also clarified
that information collected by the Information Technology
Depariment from agencles regarding information tech-
nology standards, compliance reviews, and plans 8
exempt from open records requirements.

RECOMMENDATION

The committee recommends Senate Bill No. 2043 to
require the Information Technology Committes to review
the cosi-benefit analysis of any major project of the State
Board of Higher Education or any institution under the
control of the board if the project significantly impacts the
statewide wide area network, impacts the stal
Nbrary system, or Is an administrative project, The bi
authorizes the Information Technology Depariment 10
purchase equipment tnd software through financing
arrangements; specifiex additional requirements that
must be Included In the department's business plan.
replaces the Statewide Wide Area Network Advisory
Commitiee with a State Information Technology Advisory
Committee; changes the deadline for agencies submit-
ting information technology plans from January 16 to
March 15 of each even-numbered year; and clarifies that
information collected by the information Technology
Depariment from agencles regarding information tech-
nology standards, compliance reviews, and plans I8

exempt from open records requirements.




"~ SB2043 TESTIMONY
GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
BY: CURT WOLFE, CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT (ITD)
JANUARY 12, 2001

Madame Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Curt Wolfe. I am the Chief
Information Officer and Director for Information Technology Department. I am here to testify in

favor of SB 2043,

During the last year I worked closely with the Information Technology Committee and support the
work they have done in drafting this legislation. I have attached a handout which outlines the changes '
in each section and the reason that we think the change is important. I'd like to walk through each of

these changes with you briefly.

If you have questions, please don't hesitate to interrupt.




* Suggested Changes to North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) 54.59 and 54.35
V' Section 1: NDCC 54-35-15 |

Change:
o (10) Exempt NDUS academic and research projects from the reporting requirement.

Resson for the Change:
o Reflect current practice of focusing on the administrative and university system projects.

Section 2: NDCC $4-59-05

% Change:
¢ (4) Include the ability to finance acquisitions.

Reason for the Change:

o This change reflects the current practice. Financing is necessary for large acquisitions where
the revenue stream occurs over a number of years.

Section 3: NDCC 54-59-06

Change:
o Remove specifics from the business plan requirements.

Resson for the Change:

¢ Outline conventional planning and evaluation process.
¢ Allow for changes in strategies and focus over time,

Section 4: NDCC 54-59-07

Change:
o Reconstitute the Advisory Committee

’ Reason for the Change:
, ¢ Expand focus beyond wide area network.,
o Shift the role of the committee from oversight to planning and policy.

Section 5: NDCC 54-59-11

Change: |
o Change IT plan due date to March 15

\ Reason for the Change:
‘ o Move the plan corapletion closer to the budget submission date.

LALEOISLAT\TEST2043/a012-2001.D0C




Cingo:
o Change wording of asset “list” to “information” to reflect current practice.

Reason for the Change:
o Fixed asset inventory is an accounting function not a planning function.

Change:
o Eliminate the planning requirement for wide area network users who are not state agensies.

Reason for the Change:
o This reflects the private industry practice of market surveys and trend analyses to plan future
services,

Section 6: NDCC 54-59-16

Change:
¢ Clarify that information gathered by ITD for IT planning purposes is considered open records.

Reason for the Change:

o Referral back to the agency should only be required if ITD acts as a custodian for agency
information. ITD should have the ability to release IT planning information without referral
back to the agency.

| . LALEGISLAT\TEST2043an12:2001.DOC




TESTIMONY BEFORE THE
SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

January 12, 2001
SB 2043

Chairman Krebsbach and committee members:

I’'m Roger Bailey. I'm appearing today on behalf of the members of the North Dakota
Newspgper Association.

We had concems about the original bill since the language on page 6, lines 7 and 8,
would have made some public information that is now open subject to closure at the

discretion of the department,

'Thus, we support the proposed amendment that removes this language and urge your
support of this bill, as amended,

If you have any questions, I will be happy to try to answer thzm.

Thank you for your time and consideration.
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SB 2043 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS
INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR COMMITTEE
BY: CURT WOLFE, CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT (ITD)
MARCH 13, 2001

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new subdivision
to
subsection 2 of section 28-32-01 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the definition of an administrative agency; and to"

Page 1, after line 5, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new subdivision to subsection 2 of section 28-32-01
of
the North Dakota Century Code as created by House Bill No. 1030, as
approved by the fifty-seventh legislative assembly, is created and
enacted as follows:

The information technology department."

Renumber accordingly
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Information Technology Department Issues with House Amendments to
| SB 2043

¢ Flnancing
OK with limitation of ( 3 ) years for the term of a note.

Would prefer to submit request to the Emergency Commission and report to the
Budget Section,

Limiting notes to the amount budgeted it equipment -- this is not where we budget
for these purchases ( we use operating expenses to pay for the notes ).

e Annual Report

1. Project List - already identified in the Large Project Report

2. Evaluations of cost-benefit analysis - already identified and reported to the
Legistative IT Committee

3.. Percentage of projects within budget - can implement in Statewide IT Plan

4, Percentage of projects on time - can implement in Statewide IT Plan

5. Info on management tools - can identify in Agency IT Plan

6. Info on administration costs - can implement if needed in {TD Strategic
Business Plan '

7. Comparison of ITD rates - can implement in ITD Strategic Business Plan
(tough to compare apples to apples)

8. Info on project manager - already identified in agency IT Plans

9. InfoonIT Plans - already identified in Statewide IT Plan and reported to
Legislative IT Committee

10, Number of IT training hours - can implement in ITD Strategic Business Plan

11, Info on customer satisfaction - monitor today, can add to Strategic ITD
Business Plan

12. Detailed description of IT Plan - already identified in ITD Strategic Business
Plan

o . Performance Measures
Don’t feel this is necessary as our strategic business plan outlines ITD’s direction

and goals/tactics,




